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About Lotterywest

Our vision

Our purpose

Our values

Building a better Western 
Australia together.

To enhance the quality of life and 
wellbeing for all Western Australians 
through the funding and support 
we provide to our beneficiaries and 
by running our lottery business with 
excellence and integrity.

Lotterywest is an organisation committed 
to serving the community of Western 
Australia with excellence and integrity. In 
enacting these values, we recognise the 
diversity of our stakeholders and strive 
for an approach which balances their 
different needs and expectations. 

Six core values 
underpin all that we do:

Customer focused 
We align our business culture to the ever-evolving needs and 
requirements of the people and organisations we work with.  
We offer products, services and solutions to provide the best 
possible customer experience.

Upbeat 
We enjoy working for a vibrant organisation, providing  
hope and opportunity. We are bold, motivated and  
confident in our collective ability.

Authentic 
We are true to ourselves by being open, honest and committed.

Smart 
We find ways to do the right things better.

Reliable 
We provide clarity of expectation, consistency of delivery  
and quality outcomes.

Adaptable 
We know our business and our environment. We make the  
most of opportunities and choose when and how to change.
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Product sales
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Saturday Lotto 

$313.9M

Monday and 
Wednesday Lotto 

$58.4M Set for Life 

$52.4M

Powerball 

$160.6M

Other games 

$16.2M

Scratch’n’Win 

$107M

OZ Lotto 

$145.9M

2017-18  
highlights

$855M

$463M

$260M

Lottery sales

Prizes to Western 
Australians

Contribution back to 
the community



2017-18 sales and return to 
the community

Our games
Total sales of $855 million

Our winners
Total prizes to WA winners of $463 million
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M
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ns
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$0 $124.6 
MILL ION

$103.9 
MILL ION

69

58

$15.6 
MILL ION

$15.6  
MILL ION

90.5%

9.5%
49.2%

50.8%

to WA Department of Health for health

approved in Lotterywest direct grants

to the Department of Local Government 
Sports and Cultural Industries for sport

Division One 
winners for 2017-18

Top Prize winners 
for 2017-18

to the Department of Local 
Government Sports and 
Cultural Industries for arts

of total 
sales

of total 
sales

506 retail 
outlets =

Online 
sales = Play Online

Lotterywest 
Mobile App

Our beneficiaries
Allocated more than $260 million to the WA community

Our distribution channels

•  $15.1 million to The University of Western Australia 
(UWA) for the Perth Festival and to Screenwest for the 
investment in the WA Screen Industry.

•  $88.8 million to other not-for-profit organisations and 
local government authorities. 

Lotterywest approved 785 grants to 699 different not-for-
profit organisations and local government authorities.

3ABOUT LOTTERYWEST



2017-18  
winners

69

Saturday Lotto

$51.6 
M I L L I O N

47
shared in

Division One 
winners

Division One 
winners in WA

OZ Lotto

$34.1 
M I L L I O N

3
shared in

Division One 
winners

Monday Lotto

$4.0 
MILLION

shared in

4 Division One 
winners

Wednesday Lotto

$7.0 
MILLION

shared in
7 Division One 

winners

Throughout the year, 69 Western 
Australians shared in Division One and  
1st Prizes worth over $137.8 million.  
A further 58 players shared in 
Scratch’n’Win Top Prizes worth  
over $5.2 million.
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Scratch’n’Win

$5.2 
MILLION

58

shared in

Top Prize 
winners

Powerball

$26.0 
M I L L I O N

2
shared in

Division One 
winners

Set for Life

$20,000 
PER MONTH

3
will collect

for 20 years

1st Prize 
winners

Soccer Pools

 $504,769

1
collected

Division One 
winner

Super 66

$66,664

2
shared in

Division One 
winners

In total, WA won over $463 million 
across all Lotterywest products.
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Chair executive 
summary

Thanks to the support of our retailers, players and partners, Lotterywest has achieved  
annual sales of $855 million, which delivered $723 million to directly support the  
Western Australian community in prizes and grants.

It has been extremely pleasing to see that this year’s sales results 
are an improvement on the previous year by 3.4%. I would firstly 
like to acknowledge the efforts of our Lotterywest retailers who 
work on the frontline selling Lotterywest games, and the local 
players who purchase them. Contributing factors have also 
seen more favourable jackpot conditions for our two jackpotting 
games, OZ Lotto and Powerball, as well as an increase in 
Scratch’n’Win ticket sales which reached a record $107 million.

During the year, Lotterywest continued to face the challenges of 
an increasingly competitive and complex business environment, 
both in the lottery industry and the retail environment. The Board’s 
focus has been to continue to ensure a strong strategic direction 
for Lotterywest within the changing operating environment, and 
to remain focussed on a strong financial return to the Western 
Australian community.  

A number of product innovations and campaigns occurred 
across the business during the year. This included the finalisation 
and roll-out of a new gaming system. The launch of changes 
to the Powerball game also resulted in sound financial results.  
Additionally, the Board decision to support the retail shopfit costs 
was well received, acknowledging the importance of retailers to 
Lotterywest business outcomes.  

Mindful of the constrained Western Australian economy, the 
Board closely monitored internal operational costs to keep them 
at the lowest level possible. This remains a Board priority in 
order to operate an ongoing and sustainable business model 
for Lotterywest. Work also commenced on detailed strategic 
business planning and analysis for Lotterywest which will assist 
in the business direction into the future. In terms of our grants 
program, the Board undertook two strategic planning sessions 
focussed on increasing the impact of Lotterywest grants.    

We welcomed 69 Division One winners of Lotto prizes and 58 Top 
Prize winners, with winners across all Lotterywest games sharing 
in $463 million.

I am proud to continually share  
the message that Lotterywest  
remains one of the most unique  
lotteries in the world where the money  
raised from its lottery games after prizes,  
is distributed directly back to the community.

Lotterywest sales efforts meant over $260 million was 
given back to the Western Australian community, which  
continues to support our proud and long-standing grants  
history. Lotterywest maintained its role in meeting the needs of 
our community through 699 direct grants to 785 not-for-profit 
groups and local government authorities, and $156 million via 
statutory grants to health ($124.6 million), sports ($15.6 million) and 
culture and the arts ($15.6 million).  

I had the privilege of attending several grant presentations over 
the year, including a grant of $4 million to the City of Armadale for 
the Bob Blackburn Community Hub. I had the pleasure of joining 
the Premier who officially presented the grant, which will deliver 
new facilities and accommodate not-for-profit organisations, 
community groups and service providers working in partnership 
to support disadvantaged families and community members. 
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I also had the opportunity to attend grant presentations 
supporting regional areas of Western Australia. This included the 
official opening of the Nannup Riverside Trail which received a 
$134,748 Lotterywest grant to support outdoor and recreational 
activities for residents and visitors to Nannup. 

On looking back over the year, I extend my appreciation to 
Lotterywest Chief Executive Officer Susan Hunt PSM, for her 
leadership during a period of significant change. This included 
her appointment as Chief Executive Officer of Healthway from 
January 2018, in addition to her role as Chief Executive Officer  
of Lotterywest. This has come about as a result of Government’s 
machinery of government changes identifying synergies and 
increased efficiencies.

I extend sincere appreciation to the Premier as Lotterywest’s 
reporting Minister, and thank him for his support of Lotterywest. 
The Premier has been a staunch advocate of our returns to 
community, standing firm against ‘synthetic’ lotteries which  
offer betting opportunities on the outcome of lottery draws  
and divert revenue raised to international based companies.

Heather Zampatti 
Chair

7

$463 
M I L L I O N

given to WA players 
in prize money
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CEO foreword

Lotterywest has undergone significant change over the past year, structurally and in the way we do business.  
One of these changes has been the amalgamation of Lotterywest with Healthway, which occurred on 1 January 2018,  
with my appointment as Chief Executive Officer of both organisations.

Bringing these two statutory pillars of grant-giving together 
provides opportunities to build on synergies between both 
organisations, deliver benefits to the community, and support 
great projects to build a better and healthier Western Australia. 
Healthway staff were welcomed to the Lotterywest Subiaco office 
in April 2018. With the support of the Boards and leadership 
teams of Lotterywest and Healthway, all have worked hard to 
ensure a smooth transition as we continue aligning the two 
organisations.

Another priority over the last year has been building strong 
relationships with Lotterywest retailers who are the primary 
sellers of our lottery products. These small business owners 
are the face of Lotterywest and in a challenging economic time, 
are facing a variety of pressures. During the year Lotterywest 
engaged a market research company to survey retailers and 
capture retailers’ views and insights. We have commenced 
working through the feedback received and have responded 
by increasing face-to-face engagement with our retailers and 
visiting them in their stores, including in regional areas when 
possible. This approach has been well received and will continue.  

Our retailers also received additional support this year with 
Lotterywest contributing to meet the costs of the individual 
retailer’s shopfit upgrades. This occurred as a part of the 
finalisation of a four year Retail Transformation Project.  

Maintaining a competitive edge and agility as an organisation 
has been particularly important to address the increasingly 
competitive and challenging lottery market. In addition to a tight 
economic environment, over the last year we saw the introduction 
into Australia of multiple internationally based companies 
conducting synthetic lotteries.

In September 2017, Lotterywest joined the Tatts Group and the 
Australian Lotteries Newsagents Association to support a strong 
and ultimately successful campaign to ensure these synthetic 
lotteries are not able to operate in Australia. This campaign 
aimed to raise awareness of the negative financial and social 
impacts of lottery betting services. The campaign evaluation 
report found that one in five Western Australians recalled 
the campaign and at the time, half of the Western Australian 
community recognised synthetic lotteries do not give back to the 
local community and therefore were in favour of the ban.

In June 2018 Bill was passed by the Australian Parliament to 
amend the Interactive Gambling Act 2001 to prohibit betting on 
the outcome of all lotteries, including Australian and international 
lotteries and keno draws. 

In our ongoing efforts to respond to players’ interest in larger 
jackpots in April 2018 we launched game changes to Powerball, 
with initial sales and customer feedback being largely positive. 
The implementation of the Powerball changes involved a 
major body of work across the Lotterywest business, including 
significant changes to the gaming system and a major Powerball 
re-brand marketing campaign. In addition, in June 2018, we 
retired one of the minor games in our portfolio, Soccer Pools. 
This decision followed extensive player research indicating we 
needed to simplify our product range.  

Internally, we have worked to streamline our business operations, 
identify efficiencies and review functional and organisational 
structures. This included reducing senior executive and staff 
positions as part of the State Government commitment to reduce 
senior executive positions across the public service sector 
through a voluntary severance program. 

A functional review of our Information Services unit was also 
undertaken, with the first of two review phases being completed. 
This will ensure we have the right resources to respond to a 
rapidly changing world of technology and that the highest 
possible security measures are in place. A new Media and 
Communications unit was also formed to help provide clear  
and consistent communication to all of our stakeholders.
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In our grants program, the Lotterywest Board initiated and 
supported several internal planning sessions on how to 
build the effectiveness, outcomes and impact of Lotterywest 
grants, along with how to better measure the impact they 
have in the community. This work continues and is aligned 
with stakeholders and Healthway, as we move to a more 
integrated approach to delivering grants to the Western 
Australian community.   

I acknowledge and thank the talented Lotterywest team and 
the Lotterywest Board, led by Chair Heather Zampatti, for the 
strong support which I have received during my first year as 
Lotterywest Chief Executive Officer. My thanks also go to our 
Minister, the Hon. Mark McGowan MLA, Premier of Western 
Australia for his continued support of Lotterywest in our work 
to deliver our vision, to build a better Western Australia, 
together.

Susan Hunt PSM 
CEO Lotterywest 

IMAGE: (L-R) Coastal Ward Councillor Karen Caddy, Planning Minister Rita Saffioti,  
City of Stirling Mayor Mark Irwin, David Michael MLA (Member for Balcatta), Premier  

Mark McGowan and CEO Lotterywest Susan Hunt at Whale Playground. Credit: The Scene Team.



Lotterywest Annual Report 2017-1810

Where does the 
money come from?

Where does the  
money go?

Sale of lottery 
products 

94.8%

GST recoup 

3.8%

Interest

0.8%
Retailer fees 

0.5%

Sale of  
fixed assets  

0.1%

Prizes 

53%

Purchase of 
fixed assets 

1%

Grant payments 

28%

Retailer 
commissions 

7%

GST paid 

4%
Employee 

benefits 

3%

Supplies and services 

2%
Marketing and 

distribution

2%
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Heather Zampatti (Chair)

Miriam Borthwick
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Andrea Hall
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Susan Hunt PSM
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Hon. Mark McGowan MLA 

Premier

Executive Support
Media and 
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Corporate 
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General Manager
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Jacquie Thomson
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Development 

Retail Management

Organisational 
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(as at 30 June 2018)
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Corporate structure

Ms Heather Zampatti joined the Board as Chair in September 
2015. Heather is currently Head of Wealth Management at 
Bell Potter Securities and sits on the Boards of Osteoporosis 
Australia, the Remuneration Tribunal and the University Club  
of Western Australia. 

Heather brings a strong background in community support. 
She is a former Chair of the Princess Margaret Hospital 
Foundation and Board Member of the WA Ballet, Australian 
Institute of Management (AIM) WA and Member of the 
Takeovers Panel. 

She is a graduate of the University of Western Australia  
with a Bachelor of Science and Diploma of Education and  
is a Certified Financial Planner.

Board of Management

Ms Andrea Hall

Ms Andrea Hall joined the Board in March 2012. Andrea 
is a Board Member of the Insurance Commission of 
Western Australia, Pioneer Credit Ltd, Evolution Mining Ltd, 
Pioneer Credit Ltd, C Wise and the Fremantle Football Club. 

She is a former KPMG Risk Consulting Partner and is also a 
former Chair and member of the WA Council for Chartered 
Accountants Australia New Zealand. She was previously 
a Senate Member of Murdoch University and Chair of 
Community First International. 

Andrea holds a Bachelor of Commerce, a Master of Corporate 
Finance and is a Fellow of Chartered Accountants Australia 
New Zealand. 

Mr Stephen Carre

Mr Stephen Carre joined the Board in December 2013. Stephen 
brings a wealth of experience as a small business owner of 
his multi-award winning IGA store in Swanbourne. He has 
interests in food and distribution as the Managing Director 
of Farm to Table, which supports farmers to distribute their 
products to independent retailers and supermarkets. 

He has held senior roles at Bankwest, and worked nationally 
with Westpac, NAB and IAG. 

He is a Certified Public Accountant and holds a Bachelor of 
Business and Master of Business Administration. He is a 
Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Ms Heather Zampatti (Chair)
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Ms Miriam Borthwick

Ms Miriam Borthwick joined the Board in April 2015. She is an 
experienced journalist, strategic communications specialist 
and media relations advisor. She is the Senior Media Advisor 
to the Harry Perkins Institute of Medical Research and consults 
to a wide range of clients. 

Miriam is currently a Board Member of Rocky Bay, a Women in 
Media Committee Member, past President of the Board of the 
Spina Bifida and Hydrocephalus Association of WA, and is a 
graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.  

Professor Kingsley Dixon

Professor Kingsley Dixon joined the Board in December 2017. 
Kingsley is a renowned botanist and Western Australia’s 
2016 Scientist of the Year. Throughout his career, Kingsley has 
played a leading role in conserving threatened species and 
transforming ecological restoration practice in Australia. 

He is a Board Member of the International Society for 
Ecological Restoration, Chair of The Society for Ecological 
Restoration Australasia, Co-chair of the IUCN Orchid Specialist 
Group, Chair of the International Network for Seed Based 
Restoration and member of the federal Threatened Species 
Scientific Committee and the Alligator Rivers Research and 
Technical Committee. 

He holds a Bachelor of Science (Hons) and PhD from the 
University of Western Australia.

Ms Elisabeth McLellan

Ms Elisabeth McLellan joined the Board in January 2018. 
Elisabeth is a leading conservationist based in Geraldton and 
has spent more than 25 years at the forefront of conservation, 
including almost ten years with WWF International in 
Switzerland. She now works with Bush Heritage Australia 
in a regional role that sees her responsible for three 
conservation properties and the Hamelin Outback Station 
Stay in Midwest WA. She oversees a team of ecologists, 
reserve managers and hospitality staff and is responsible for 
delivering conservation impacts at scale across the reserves. 

Elisabeth is a member of the International Union for 
Conservation of Nature’s World Commission on Protected 
Areas as well as the Species Survival Commission. She holds 
a Bachelor of Science (Hons), Master of Applied Science and a 
Graduate Diploma of Education.
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Corporate structure

Ms Susan Hunt PSM commenced as Chief Executive  
Officer of Lotterywest in July 2017 and in January 2018  
was concurrently appointed Chief Executive Officer for 
Healthway, another Western Australian statutory organisation. 
From 2014-2017 she was the CEO of Perth Zoo, following  
a career in public policy, conservation and research. 

Susan was the President of the World Association of Zoos 
and Aquariums from 2015-17 and of the Australasian Zoo 
Association from 2007-2011. Susan has previously served as 
a Board Member of the Trustee of the International Species 
Information System, is on the Board of VenuesWest as well  
as an invitee on the Board of the Perth Festival. 

Susan is a Fellow of the Australian and New Zealand School  
of Government and in 2017 was made an Australian Fellow  
of the Institute of Public Administration (IPAA). She has received 
an IPAA Patrons Award and in 2010 was awarded a Public 
Service Medal for her outstanding contribution to public service.

Leadership Team

Ms Lorna Pritchard
General Manager,  
Grants and Community Development

Ms Lorna Pritchard is responsible for ensuring the effective 
management of the Lotterywest direct grants program, as well 
as providing advice and support to the Western Australian not-
for-profit sector. 

Lorna has spent the last 17 years working in the grants and 
community development field, starting as a Community 
Development and Funding Advisor (New Zealand) for the 
Auckland/Northland Lottery distributions. She was the 
Coordinator for the Community Organisational Grants Scheme 
and the Lottery Auckland Community Board, as well as the 
Project Manager for the Grants Online System before joining 
Lotterywest. In her six and a half years at Lotterywest, she 
has held leadership roles in the Grants Development & 
Management Team before being appointed as General 
Manager, Grants and Community Development in 2017. 

Lorna holds a Bachelor of Arts in Maori Development majoring 
in Social Work from Auckland University of Technology. 

Mr Ioannis Gerothanasis
General Manager,  
Planning and Market Development

Mr Ioannis Gerothanasis leads Lotterywest’s Planning and 
Market Development business unit and is responsible for 
Lotterywest’s planning, business analysis and insights,  
market research and development and marketing functions. 

He has 18 years of international management experience 
working for large multi-national organisations on projects  
in the Asia Pacific, North and South America, Europe and  
the Middle East, initially in the travel and tourism industry,  
and later in the lottery industry. 

Ioannis has substantial experience in project and program 
management, information technology and public and  
private sector tendering. He holds a Bachelor of Business  
in Management and Organisational Behaviour. 

Ms Susan Hunt PSM  
Chief Executive Officer
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Ms Jacquie Thomson 
General Manager,  
Lottery Operations

Ms Jacquie Thomson is responsible for leading Lottery 
Operations, which includes gaming, channel and product 
development. She also heads management and  
development of the retail network, and services and  
support to our broad customer base including retailers, 
players and grant customers. 

Prior to moving into her current role, Jacquie was Lotterywest’s 
General Manager, Grants and Community Development from 
2003-2017. Jacquie has worked in community development 
for more than 25 years. Before joining Lotterywest in 1994, she 
worked in the not-for-profit sector across the areas of domestic 
violence, youth accommodation and mental health and as a 
community development practitioner. 

She holds a Bachelor of Arts in Social Sciences from  
Curtin University, a Graduate Certificate in Management  
from Deakin University and has owned a small retail  
business with her husband.

Mr Jeremy Hubble
General Manager,  
Corporate Services and Chief Financial Officer

Mr Jeremy Hubble leads the financial, human resources, 
information, physical and technology related support  
functions critical to Lotterywest’s operations. He is  
responsible for overarching financial management, 
governance, statutory compliance and technology partner for 
the lottery gaming system. 

Jeremy is a qualified Chartered Accountant with substantial 
experience in commerce and government. He has extensive 
corporate governance experience and is a member of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Before joining Lotterywest, Jeremy was a senior executive in 
both State and local Government for 20 years and has held 
senior positions in major accounting and public commercial 
entities. He holds a Bachelor of Business degree and a Master 
of Business Administration.
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Alignment to Government goals
The State Government’s broad, high level goals are supported at an agency level by specific objectives. The following diagram shows 
the alignment between the Government goals and Lotterywest’s objectives, services and performance measures.

Strong communities - 
Safe communities and 

supported families

Support the community 
of Western Australia 
through our grants 

program

Provision of grants and other distributions to 
the community of Western Australia

Total allocations to beneficiaries 
 per capita

Total allocations to beneficiaries  
as a % of sales

Sales per adult

Grant operations expenses as a % of 
direct grants

Lottery expenses as a % of sales

Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia

Better places - A quality 
environment with 

liveable and affordable 
communities and vibrant 

regions

Ensure that our products 
and services are 

accessible to all people 
living in our State

Sustainable finances - 
Responsible financial 

management and better 
service delivery

Provide and efficiently 
administer a 

responsible lottery 
service in Western 

Australia

Future jobs and skills - 
Grow and diversify the 

economy, create jobs and 
support skills development

Maintain a strong State-
wide retail network, and 

develop relationships 
and partnerships with 

WA suppliers

Efficiency indicators

Efficiency indicators

Effectiveness indicators Effectiveness indicators

Government 
goal

Lotterywest 
objective

Lotterywest 
service

Performance 
measures
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Strategic framework
Our strategic framework describes the key elements of our business 
model and is the basis of the plan to achieve our objectives.

Building a better  
WA together

Products  
and services Distribution

Capacity

Communications 
and branding 

Vision
Our focus areas

Creating public value

Stakeholder
management

Operating 
our business

Products
and services

Channel Brand

Delivering excellent customer experience

Smarter internal processes

Optimising capability

O
ur

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
bl

oc
ks
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Player channels
Our products can be purchased in store through our many 
Lotterywest retailers and online.

As at 30 June 2018, there were 503 full service retailers selling 
Lotterywest products and three Scratch’n’Win only outlets in 
our retail network. This was a reduction by four stores over  
the previous 12 months. During the 2017-18 financial year:

• We upgraded our lottery gaming system and the hardware 
used across the retail network, including introducing 
self-service kiosks in selected retail outlets to complement 
existing services;

• We launched the new Lotterywest membership which 
replaced the previous Players’ Registration Service (PRS);

• Eight new Lotterywest retailers were established; and

• We exhibited a ‘pop-up’ store at two Perth events.

Lotterywest Annual Report 2017-18

Retail network changes

New stores

Change of 
ownership

Relocations

2016-172017-18

16

39

12

8

30

12
90.5%

9.5%
RETAIL

ONLINE

Player channels

29%
148
no. outlets

COUNTRY

506
OUTLETS 

TOTAL

Locations of Lotterywest retailers

3
355

71%
METRO

no. outlets Scratch‘n’Win 
only

IMAGE: Belinda Jefferies from Nextra Bunbury, Anky and Mark Dennis from Crosslands 
Newsagency Bunbury, with Marie Barton, Lotterywest Business Development Officer.

Products and services
Distribution
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40
12

37 6

16

39

11

37 6

16

1

1

0 0

0

KIOSK

CONVENIENCE STORE

SUPERMARKET DELICATESSEN

PHARMACY

Full 
service

Full 
service

Full 
service

Full 
service

Full 
service

Scratch’n’Win 
only

Scratch’n’Win 
only

Scratch’n’Win 
only

Scratch’n’Win 
only

Scratch’n’Win 
only

395

394 1

NEWSAGENCY

Full 
service

Scratch’n’Win 
only

231

230 1

NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SHOPPING CENTRE

Full 
service

Scratch’n’Win 
only

158
STRIP SHOP

156

Full 
service

2

Scratch’n’Win 
only

50

50 0

STAND ALONE

Full 
service

Scratch’n’Win 
only

67

67 0

REGIONAL SHOPPING CENTRE

Full 
service

Scratch’n’Win 
only

Lotterywest retailers by business environment Lotterywest retailers’ 
primary business type

Business development
During the year there has been an increased focus on meeting 
with retailers and this will continue. We conducted 1,070 
meetings with Lotterywest retailers which supported 58% of  
full service retailers to achieve sales growth on their previous 
year’s performance. A focus of the meetings was to establish 
strong and positive working relationships in our shared 
objective to promote and sell Lotterywest products.

The Lotterywest Retailer Business Development and Sales 
team carried out regional visits, at times in conjunction with 
Lotterywest’s Grants and Community Development team. 
Visits included the Mid-West, Goldfields, South West and 
Great Southern regions, meeting with over 60 retailers.

Retailers’ Consultative Panel
The Retailers’ Consultative Panel is one way we seek input and 
advice from retailers on business matters and items of shared 
priority. Meetings are held approximately every two months, 
with a broad range of topics covered over the past year.

There are eight Lotterywest retailers on the Consultative Panel 
and we would like to acknowledge the time and effort given by 
these individuals.

Participating retailers shared in an additional $182,232 
through these incentive initiatives.

Across all incentives and rewards programs, Lotterywest retailers 
received $607,232 which was an increase of 52% on 2016-17.

Retailer training
Two core operational training courses were delivered 
and in September 2017, Lotterywest introduced classroom 
courses and e-Learning modules to support the 
introduction of new terminals throughout the retail network. 

Training Course Courses 
conducted Attendances

Manage a Lottery Outlet 12 91

Lotterywest Essentials 16 162

New Technology 
Classroom Training

45 191

e-Learning Not applicable 2,011

Total 73 2,455

An emphasis of the meetings during 2017-18 has been to 
build cooperation and understanding in the context of a 
constrained economic environment, increased competition 
and changing customer purchasing trends.

This effort was complemented by several positive meetings 
with the Australian Lottery and Newsagents Association 
(ALNA) during the year which resulted in a channel for  
ongoing clear dialogue with this major stakeholder.

Lotterywest also actively engaged with retailers through 
stakeholder surveys and workshops. This enabled us to 
better understand the major issues faced by retailers and 
their expectations and constraints. Input from retailers has 
directly informed Lotterywest’s planning throughout the year, 
and will continue to do so.

Incentives and rewards
Our annual rewards program ‘Rewards 4 Growth’ recognises 
and rewards our retailers for their sales performance. This 
year, $425,000 was paid to retailers through this program.

There were also retailer incentives and rewards programs 
offered over shorter periods. Called ‘Sales Sprints’, these were 
primarily enacted for targeted, short marketing campaigns. 

AGENCY PERFORMANCE



Pop-up stores
This year saw us successfully operate two Lotterywest ‘pop-up’ 
stores, taking up position at the Mount Hawthorn Streets and 
Lanes Festival in May, and at the WA Day Festival in June.

This was a collaborative approach with local retailers where 
Lotterywest games are sold at major events which are 
supported through Lotterywest grants. This has introduced 
lottery products to new players and at the same time closing 
the loop by sharing information on the impact of Lotterywest 
grants resulting from the sale of Lotterywest products. 
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Retail Transformation Program
During the year we finalised the update of Lotterywest’s gaming  
system and replaced all hardware gaming terminals across the  
Lotterywest retail network. This was a successful culmination of several years of intensive work.  
As a component of the gaming system upgrade, we became the first lottery in Australia to  
introduce self-service kiosks. This approach was introduced to selected stores with the primary  
intent to complement the existing retail service and provide players with increased access.

The work on updating in-store shopfits and signage across our retail network continued during the year.  
As a response to strong feedback received from retailers, we have increased our responsiveness and flexibility 
regarding the delivery of shopfit requirements. Changes and increased flexibility were also applied to our previous 
approach to in-store retail signage.

The Lotterywest Board also determined that Lotterywest would cover the costs for the Lotterywest components 
of retailer shop fitouts. This is currently being implemented, demonstrating our continued commitment to the 
importance of our partnership with retailers.

A set-back to the upgrade of the shopfits has been failures in some components of external signage and 
some cabinetry items. This is being rectified as a priority, working closely with affected retailers. Discussion 
with the responsible contractors and designers on this matter is continuing. 

Despite these challenges, over the past year approximately 100 retailers have upgraded their stores to reflect 
a brighter, fresher Lotterywest brand. More stores will undergo shopfits in 2018-19 as we work towards brand 
consistency across the network.

Products  
and services
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Customer services
Our Customer Services team had over 100,000 interactions 
with players, retailers and grant customers. We respond to 
a broad range of inquiries, from technical issues on retailer 
terminals to the process of applying for a grant to use of the 
Lotterywest membership.

Customer satisfaction initiatives

We conducted two customer satisfaction initiatives: 
the customer satisfaction survey and post-call survey 
to measure service level and responsiveness to our 
customer’s needs. During the year, over 1,300 of our players 
who had recently contacted us were surveyed to gauge their 
satisfaction levels and identify areas for service improvement.

In summary, players rated our service as very high, 
particularly in relation to the tone of communication they 
received, our ability to understand their question and our 
knowledge of products and services. 

The results showed that over 80% of customers were 
‘satisfied’ or ‘very satisfied’ with the service provided, with 
the majority being very satisfied.

A system is presently in place where callers to our call centre 
have the opportunity to complete a survey after the call. Over 
86% of respondents indicated they were satisfied with the 
overall experience provided.

Complaints management

A Complaints Management Policy was introduced to better 
manage complaints in a fair, unbiased, timely and confidential 
manner. It also provides a clear framework for complaint 
reporting.

This development aims to continue to facilitate a positive 
culture which welcomes feedback and complaints as a 
method of contributing to continuous improvement.

Distribution of Lotterywest products
At the request of the Lotterywest Board and State Government, 
over the last year we conducted extensive research and 
analysis on Lotterywest’s distribution approach and delivery 
of Lotterywest products. It is imperative that our distribution 
serves the current operating environment, player behaviours 
and retailer and business requirements, while continuing to 
maximise returns to the Western Australian community by 
safeguarding strong revenue.

As major stakeholders, our retailers were directly 
engaged during this research and investigation 
process. This has included nine workshops 
and ten one-on-one phone interviews to better 
understand retailer views and perceptions about 
the relationship with Lotterywest and what 
opportunities they see for the future.

This work is continuing with findings expected to 
be finalised in 2018-19.

IMAGE: New shopfit at Royal Perth Hospital. Credit: Atifax Project Solutions. 
THIS PAGE: Lotterywest ‘pop-up’ store at the WA Day Festival.

100,000
interactions with 

players, reatilers and 
grant customers

Over
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Retailer profiles

“We’ve enjoyed watching the art take shape and were pleased to 
be part of the event. We’ve been retailers for almost thirty years 
and still enjoy seeing community projects come to life, especially 
in the little town of Newdegate, so close to us.”

Murray and Cobi Stanton, Lake Grace Plaza IMAGE: Artist Brenton See (middle), with Murray and 
 Cobi Stanton of Lake Grace Plaza Newsagency in front of the  

Newdegate CBH Group Silos. Credit: Bewley Shaylor.

Lake Grace Plaza
Murray and Cobi Stanton have been operating their Lake Grace 
Lotterywest store since 1989. 

The neighbouring town of Newdegate, 50 kilometres away, will be enjoying a new backdrop 
thanks to the support of a Lotterywest grant to FORM for the Public Silo Trail project.

The Public Silo Trail transforms infrastructure, such as grain silos and transformer boxes, into 
word class murals in rural towns all across Western Australia.

The couple attended the unveiling of the artwork. It spans four CBH Group grain silos and 
interprets the lives and histories of people living in Western Australia’s farming regions.

24
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IMAGE: Phillip Foo from newsXpress Silver Sands with Chris Witt,  
Lotterywest Grants Customer Services Officer at the  

Mandurah Fishability Vehicle Launch.

“The local community fully understands 
the importance of grants and the work that 
Lotterywest does. That’s why, even if they 
didn’t get a win from Lotto or a Scratchie, 
most of them simply say ‘well, at least I’ve 
contributed to a good cause’.” 

Philip Foo, newsXpress Silver Sands

newsXpress Silver Sands
Philip Foo from newsXpress Silver Sands brought some luck to 
the southern suburbs over Christmas selling a $75,000 Top Prize 
Scratch’n’Win ticket. 

The winner, a lucky Mandurah woman, was one of Mr Foo’s regular customers. He was 
delighted to know the prize went towards a new car and her upcoming retirement.

Mr Foo also saw first-hand how Lotterywest grants benefit his local community after attending 
the launch of a new vehicle for the Fishers’ with Disabilities Association in Mandurah funded 
by Lotterywest. The vehicle will support onshore and offshore recreational fishing activities for 
people with disabilities and mental illness in the Peel region.

25AGENCY PERFORMANCE



Our brand

Powerball game changes
As the biggest jackpotting game, Powerball is a significant 
contributor to our lottery games portfolio. Working 
cooperatively with the Australian Lottery Bloc, in April 2018 
changes to the game structure were made to grow the game, 
with an aim to attract new players.

To relaunch the Powerball changes we developed a bold 
new campaign which encourages consumers to ‘Get 
some Powerball problems’ in their life. The popular culture 
phrase ‘first world problems’ was the inspiration behind 
this campaign which plays on the idea that there are some 
problems in life you’d actually like to have.

The campaign was brought to life with a series of TV 
commercials all showing different Powerball ‘problems’ – from 
finding the right mechanic for your private helicopter to having 
noisy neighbours on your luxury super yacht.

Powerball sales exceeded targets for ten of the first 11 weeks 
since the changes were launched and there has been limited 
impact on the sales of other major games to this point.

Scratch’n’Win celebrates 35 years
In June 2017 it was 35 years since Scratch’n’Win was launched. 
To celebrate we launched a special edition $5 ticket which also 
offered the biggest second chance draw in Lotterywest history. 
This campaign was brought to life with a character called 
‘Second Chance Steve’ who asked the question ‘isn’t it great 
when you get a second chance?’

This concept was applied extensively through television 
to radio, digital advertising and in-store point of sale. 
The campaign was well received by our players, with the 
‘Celebrate 35 Years’ ticket achieving its targets in nine weeks, 
compared to an average of 20 weeks. The second chance 
draw feature proved popular amongst players with almost 
90,000 entries received into the competition.

Western Australians can play a different game every 
week day, but central to Lotterywest’s approach is the 
promotion of responsible play. We actively celebrate 
how our community benefits from Lotterywest revenue 
through our community grants program.

26
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Set for Life influencer campaign
In May 2018, a new Set for Life campaign was launched, 
partnering with social influencer and aspiring abstract artist 
Jess Swan. The partnership showcased how a week’s worth 
of a Set for Life 1st Prize win would enhance Jess’ life, allowing 
her the opportunity to pursue her dream of holding her own 
solo art exhibition.

We filmed snippets of Jess’ journey to the solo exhibition 
from the early creation stage where paint hits the canvas, 
to the opening of the exhibition and everything in between. 
Jess shared this progression with her many followers on 
Instagram and Facebook.

This was the first campaign of its kind for Lotterywest. Social 
media engagement was four times higher than average, 
drawing in the younger, infrequent player market.

Soccer Pools hangs up its boots
In June 2018, the Lotterywest game of Soccer Pools was 
retired after 29 years. This decision was made after market  
research revealed that Soccer Pools was one of our least 
preferred games and that player experience could be  
improved by simplifying our product range.

Three promotions were run in the lead up to the game’s 
retirement, each boosting the Division One prize amount by  
$500,000. At one stage the game’s Division One prize pool 
jackpotted to over $1 million. A final draw promotion was  
also held with the Division One prize, cascading to Division 
Two if there were no Division One winners. Regular Soccer 
Pools players were encouraged to support the community 
through our other games, particularly Cash 3, Super66 and 
Monday and Wednesday Lotto.



Workforce and  
Organisational  
Development

Workforce

On 4 July 2017, Ms Susan Hunt PSM commenced as 
Chief Executive Officer of Lotterywest.

Lotterywest exceeded the State Government’s target reduction 
for voluntary severances, with the reduction of two Senior 
Executive Service positions and 19 staff positions. This was at 
a cost of $2.4 million. The net FTE reduction after allowing for 
the creation of five offset positions was 16 FTE. This reduction 
in FTE will result in future salary and on costs reducing by an 
estimated 7%.

As a result, total staff numbers across Lotterywest reduced 
during the year from 241 to 220. This has provided an 
opportunity to streamline operations, realise efficiencies across 
the organisation and review functional and organisational 
structures. In the medium term, these changes will facilitate 
investment in the technical skills critical for responding to our 
rapidly changing external environment. 

In December 2017 Government announced the bringing 
together of the Western Australian Health Promotion 
Foundation (Healthway) with Lotterywest under  
Ms Susan Hunt PSM.

Ms Hunt was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the  
two statutory entities, prescribed through the Lotteries 
Commission Act 1990 and the Western Australian Health 
Promotions Act 2016. 

Activities have commenced to integrate Healthway 
and Lotterywest operations, including a successful 
physical co-location of the Healthway workforce to the 
Lotterywest Head Office. Further synergies, particularly 
in grant making, will emerge in 2018–19 as integration 
activities progress.

There has also been a review of our performance and 
development programs during the year. Changes to 
strengthen performance, staff feedback and communication 
have been implemented along with support programmes for 
all staff.  

Organisational development
With the implementation of the voluntary severance 
program across Lotterywest, staff have been supported 
with career and counselling services. A robust and 
innovative wellness program engaged 278 attendances  
in over 45 different events. 

The Inter-Agency Mentoring program and the Aspiring 
Leaders program provided opportunities for 12 and 28 staff 
respectively, to widen their networks and acquire new skills. 
The programs also provided targeted professional coaching 
by qualified internal staff to help participants with clarifying 
and defining career strengths, values and opportunities for 
further development. 

Information services
The Information Services (IS) Functional Review was completed 
in August 2017 and the first of two phases which arose from 
the Review’s recommendations was implemented. The first 
phase surrounded the preferred technology model (Innovate, 
Plan, Build, Run), restructure of the IS team, and the creation 
of key positions to address identified gaps. The majority of 
this work was completed by June 2018 with some recruitment 
activities remaining. The second phase, which involves a 
number of work packages around setting the direction; speed 
and agility to execute; leveraging information and analytics; 
and optimising and streamlining is scheduled to commence in 
2018-19.

40
staff participated 

in our Inter-Agency 
Mentoring & 

Aspiring Leaders 
programs
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Corporate 
social 
responsibility

Responsible Gambling
As a Government entity and iconic WA brand, Lotterywest 
is committed to ensuring that our products are safe 
and return value to the community. We have a special 
responsibility to ensure that we remain at the forefront of 
harm prevention in our products and business practices. 
To that end, Lotterywest holds a responsible gambling 
accreditation from the World Lottery Association (WLA) 
and we aspire to upgrade this accreditation to the highest 
possible standard during this coming year. 

As part of our commitment to responsible gambling 
practices, Lotterywest ensures that all staff and retailers are 
educated in responsible play. Additional initiatives include 
mandatory training for new owners and managers of lottery 
outlets that includes a responsible gambling component, 
and responsible gambling checks in our game design. The 
importance of responsible play is continually highlighted 
with staff, beginning with their induction to Lotterywest, and 
further responsible gambling development initiatives will be 
implemented during the coming year.

In addition, Lotterywest participates in and funds initiatives 
through the Problem Gambling Support Services Committee 
which is the primary vehicle for providing assistance and 
counselling across WA.

Reconciliation Work Plan
Lotterywest created an internal Reconciliation Work Plan 
which seeks to foster a culture that promotes equality,  
and acceptance of our shared history, and the removal  
of negative race relations. 

Key elements of the plan include:
• Practical steps to support reconciliation by raising 

awareness and providing education and positive 
meaningful experiences to Lotterywest staff; and

• Explore opportunities for Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander peoples’ employment and career development. 

Lotterywest will also continue to support grants to community 
groups which deliver services to and work with Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander communities.

Environmental sustainability performance
Lotterywest is committed to reducing its environmental impact 
and has implemented a number of initiatives throughout the 
year to support this, including:

• Balloons will no longer be used for marketing  
Lotterywest products;

• Environmental considerations are assessed in the 
evaluation of tenders, where appropriate;

• Sustainable purchasing practices for stationery and 
cleaning supplies (recycled and bio-degradable content), 
wherever possible;

• Recycling of coffee pods; 

• Strategies to increase recycling including staff education 
and waste separation; and

• Introducing alternatives to single use coffee cups.

Lotterywest’s Head Office is rated five and half stars  
(of a possible 6) under the NABERS energy rating system that 
measures the environmental performance of  
Australian buildings.
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Grants
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We had the privilege of working with hundreds of 
not-for-profit and local government organisations 
across the State on how best to support their 
initiatives and help make our community better.

direct grants to 699 not-for-
profit organisations and local 

government authorities
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Community support and development
Our Grants and Community Development team has worked 
with 57 first time applicants to establish grant eligibility and 
on how we can best support a community initiative. During 
the year our Board and Minister approved 785 direct grants 
to 699 not-for-profit organisations and local governments. 
These ranged from small locally based activities, to large 
cross sector initiatives. 

We are committed to delivering grants that result in 
lasting and significant change, provide vital community 
infrastructure, support organisations assisting people in 
urgent need of food, clothing, shelter, transport and other 
essentials. We aim to continue to support projects that build 
knowledge, shape policy development and inform service 
delivery in the community.

We support our community with priority target groups such 
as Aboriginal people, children and families, people with 
disabilities, seniors and young people.

We support projects that encourage broad participation 
in social, recreational or cultural activities, events and 
celebrations including for those who face barriers to 
participation.

A focus of our work is also to support organisations to 
conserve, protect, explain and share natural and built 
heritage. These grants fall into four areas: conservation 
of natural heritage, conservation of cultural heritage, 
interpretation of cultural heritage and community histories.

Our development grants assist organisations to learn, 
explore options, plan and develop for the future.

Working for our customers
Our Grants and Community Development team met with many regional groups throughout the year with visits to Roebourne, 
Carnarvon, Bunbury and Kalgoorlie, numerous towns in the Wheatbelt, and in Halls Creek, Geraldton, Albany, and the 
Dampier Peninsula. Being connected and engaged with our community, with continued understanding of emerging issues 
and trends, is pivotal to our community development understanding. 

In 2017–18 the following improvements and initiatives were implemented:

• A strategic review of the Lotterywest grants framework was undertaken that supports our vision of ‘Building a better WA 
together’ and strengthens the impact achieved with the grants supported by Lotterywest. A social investment approach  
to grant making was endorsed by the Board and will be implemented over the next financial year. 

• With an average of 95% of applications submitted online, the development of an online portal to enhance the application 
process and interface of our grants system;

• Four grants funding seminars to provide ongoing guidance and information to new organisations or members; 

• Ten round table ‘sector conversations’, four metro and 29 regional seminars to encourage and increase  
community collaboration;

• Our grant payment timeframe was reduced to a five day average from nine days in the previous year, exceeding our target 
of ten days: and 

• Application turnaround timeframe median increased from the previous year by four days to 69 days. This was four days 
longer than our target of 65 days. Ways to streamline the process and reduce the timeframe are being explored.

During the year we continued to lead, partner, broker and facilitate collaborative opportunities with key stakeholders across 
the areas of research, strategy implementation, pilot initiatives and sector development. 

One example is a $1.75 million grant to the Western Australia Council of Social Services (WACOSS) in April 2018 towards the 
‘100 Families WA’ collaborative project. This collaboration involves nine key stakeholders to undertake research and gather 
evidence on how best to reduce entrenched disadvantage.

“Overall congratulations on a user friendly and reasonably efficient 
application process. I will definitely be using this portal again.” 

Grants customer

GRANTS
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Direct grant stories

Grants

“Lotterywest funding is supporting DADAA to realise a long-
held vision – to have a centrally-located, contemporary arts and 
disability hub in one of WA’s most historic buildings in the centre of 
Fremantle.”

David Doyle 
Executive Director, DADAA

DADAA 
DADAA has established itself as a leading arts and health 
organisation that creates access to a range of cultural activities for 
people living with disability or a mental illness.

DADAA successfully tendered to lease the iconic heritage listed building to create a community 
arts and cultural hub.

A Lotterywest grant towards building additions and equipment has transformed the Old 
Fremantle Boys School, creating a vibrant arts and health destination consisting of community 
art studios; new digital, production and performance facilities; a community kitchen, a cinema 
and a space to offer dance programs.

Since 1993,  
DADAA has received 

39 
grants totalling over 

$3.6 million

IMAGE: Tracksuit performers at DADAA’s Fremantle Old Boy’s School. Credit: DADAA
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“Lotterywest funding has enabled us to put 
in place key infrastructure to make our site 
fully accessible including access to the free 
dolphin interaction zone. It has been critical 
to supporting our strong volunteer base 
and ensuring that we can deliver the onsite 
experience that our community and visitors 
to the region expect. As a not-for-profit 
organisation this support has been pivotal 
in helping us deliver on our conservation, 
education and research goals.”

David Kerr 
General Manager, Dolphin Discovery Centre

Dolphin Discovery Centre
The Dolphin Discovery Centre provides education opportunities for 
tourists and visitors to understand local marine animals and their 
environment through personal interaction with the dolphins of 
Koombana Bay. 

Staff and volunteers at the Centre support and contribute to conservation of the marine animals 
and conduct research to accumulate knowledge for better marine management and conservation.

A Lotterywest grant supports property enhancements, equipment and project costs to improve 
the experience for visitors to the Dolphin Discovery Centre. It will also support the Centre’s 
conservation work, protecting the marine ecology for the benefit of future generations.

GRANTS

IMAGE:  Dolphin Discovery Centre volunteer Paul with Donny the turtle. Credit: Dolphin Discovery Centre.



Screenwest

Grants

This year marked 25 years of Lotterywest supporting Screenwest, the  
State’s premier screen organisation. This support helped with the production  
of over 460 Western Australian feature films, television shows, documentaries,  
shorts and web-series including Red Dog, Jasper Jones, Paper Planes and  
documentary series Who Do You Think You Are?, Outback Truckers and Family Rules.

Over the past 12 months a range of production programs were filmed and released including:

• Mystery Road, The Series – filmed in Western Australia’s spectacular East Kimberley with a powerhouse of Australian 
talent including a high number of local Indigenous actors. It was broadcast in June 2018 to fantastic ratings and critical 
acclaim.

• Breath – based on the Tim Winton novel and filmed in the Great Southern Region, the feature made its World Premiere  
at Toronto International Film Festival 2017 and community screenings in Albany, Denmark and Perth.

• The Heights – filming started in June 2018 of this 30-episode drama series based at ABC Studios in Perth. The series has 
re-ignited the local television industry with the production engaging nearly 100 local crew and casting 93 speaking and 
extras roles locally.
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IMAGE: Simon Baker as Sando, Ben Spence as Loonie  
and Samson Coulter as Pikelet. Credit Breath.
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Perth Festival
Hundreds of thousands of Western Australians shared exciting and 
inspiring moments together at the 2018 Perth Festival, acclaimed for 
its diversity, excellence and accessibility.

Celebrating 65 years as Australia’s longest-running and biggest curated arts event, the Festival 
presented more than 1,100 local, national and international artists across 270 music, theatre, 
dance, literature, film and visual art events.

Highlights included the moving Barber Shop Chronicles, Compagnie XY’s daring circus in Il N’est 
Pas Encore Minuit, Robert Lepage weaving theatrical magic in The Far Side of the Moon and the 
world-premiere of Julia Hales’ powerful disability arts stage production You Know We Belong 
Together.

Beyond the packed theatres, the Festival’s education and arts sector development initiatives 
made a big impact in community halls, workshops and schools across the State. 

This year’s 460,000 attendances included more than 200,000 people who experienced the free 
outdoor sound work Siren Song. Over 80,000 people gathered under the stars at Lotterywest 
Films during the season. Western Australian stories were shared by 20,000 people at the 
Museum of Water, and another 23,000 people experienced Zadok Ben David’s Human Nature 
exhibition inspired by nature, magic and illusion. 

35

460,000 
total attendances  
at Perth Festival  

for 2018

GRANTS

IMAGE: Gnark-ba Karla Waarnginy. Credit: Toni Wilkinson.
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Statutory grants

Grants

In total, Lotterywest distributed $156 million 
in statutory grants to health and hospitals, 
sports and recreation, and culture and the 
arts this financial year.

The Lotteries Commission Act 1990 specifies how net gaming 
revenue (i.e. ticket subscription less prize payments) is to 
be distributed to beneficiaries. Under the Act, 40% is to be 
distributed to the Department of Health (WA Health) for 
the support of the State’s hospitals. A further 5% is to be 
distributed to the Sports Lottery Account and 5% goes to the 
Arts Lottery Account. The respective Minister for each of these 
portfolios is responsible for the subsequent distribution of 
these funds. 

Health and hospitals 
Lotterywest funding of $124.6 million was 
allocated to health projects across the State, 
helping WA Health to deliver safe, high 
quality and accessible health care to Western 
Australia’s growing population.

WA Health offers services to the community in 
metropolitan, regional and remote areas of  
the State in hundreds of locations, spanning  
an area of 2.5 million square kilometres.

In the past 12 months the WA health system has: 
• Received 1,046,611 emergency department 

visits;
• Performed 85,167 elective surgeries; and 
• Delivered 24,914 babies.

allocated to  
health projects across 

 the State

$124.6M
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Sport and recreation 
The Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural 
Industries (DLGSC) facilitates lively communities and the 
economy through the offering of outstanding and inclusive 
sport and recreation experiences in Western Australia. 
Sport helps build stronger, healthier, happier and safer 
communities and this year the Department distributed 
$15.6 million from the Sports Lotteries Account, to support a 
range of programs and organisations across the State.

More than 4,500 local sporting clubs, with over 
830,000 members, were supported through $7.5 million 
in funding to 87 State sporting associations.

Significant funding also went towards creating active and 
connected regional communities across the State and 
supporting Western Australians to achieve their best through 
the WA Institute of Sport.

Culture and arts
Through its Lotterywest funding of $15.6 million, Culture 
and the Arts (WA) a division of the DLGSC have supported 
over 40 arts and cultural organisations to deliver a diverse 
annual program of activity. Activities have ranged from 
intimate to large-scale theatre, music, visual arts, opera, 
dance, literature and free community events showcasing 
work by leading international artists alongside our own 
world-class talent. 

A highlight was the WA Opera’s 50th anniversary celebration 
gala concert at Supreme Court Gardens as part of its annual 
Opera in the Park program. The event drew record numbers 
and Puccini’s masterpiece, Tosca was simulcast across 
the State.

Lotterywest’s support has also enabled Western Australian 
artists to reach across international borders. Tim Watts of 
The Last Great Hunt has been touring The Adventures of Alvin 
Sputnik to sell out audiences all over the world and in 2017; 
the company presented 104 international performances to an 
audience of nearly 10,000.

was distributed across the State 
to support a range of sport and 

recreation programs and  
organisations

$15.6M

was distributed across the  
state to over 40 arts and  

culture organisations

$15.6M

GRANTS
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Reduced barriers of entry resulting in increased competition
Reduced barriers of entry has led to the market entry of new and aggressive competitors putting at risk 
Lotterywest’s market share

Competition for brand awareness
Our lottery and grant products and services operate in an increasingly crowded market with greater 
competition for brand awareness across a growing range of mediums

Slowing population growth
Population growth has traditionally led to Lotterywest revenue growth. Accordingly, a slowing population 
growth rate impacts future revenue growth expectations

Subdued economic climate
Reduced household discretionary income and retail confidence impacts sales of lottery products and 
increases demand for grant making

Reduction of grants funds available
Changes in government funding and service procurement models, combined with declining levels of 
corporate and philanthropic support, has reduced the grant funds available to meet demand and need

Reviewing our brand, communications 
and marketing strategies

Developing organisational efficiencies 
to maximise returns and social value 
to the Western Australian community

Increased cyber risk
The integrity of the lottery is essential to consumer confidence in Lotterywest products

Implementing appropriate security 
measures

Rapidly changing technology
Utilising emerging technologies could provide a competitive advantage to Lotterywest or its 
competitors

Reviewing and developing 
organisational capability 
and capacity

Key challenges and impacts Key response

Lotterywest Annual Report 2017-18

Trends in demographics and consumer behaviour
The demographic composition of Western Australia is changing, with customers embracing e-commerce 
and expecting a streamlined and personalised retail experience

Pursuing strategies and initiatives for our 
products, services and distribution, and 
working closely with Lotterywest retailers
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Lotterywest key performance indicators

Certification of Performance Indicators
We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, 
are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Lotteries Commission’s 
performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Lotteries Commission for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2018.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Outcome statement
Lotteries are conducted with the proceeds returned to the community of Western Australia.

Services
1. Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia.

2.  The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia.

Effectiveness 
Indicators

Actual 
2017-18

Budget 
2017-18

Actual 
2016-17

Actual 
2015-16

Actual 
2014-15

Actual 
2013-14

1.  Sales per adult $414.08 $433.99 $402.39 $424.88 $404.49 $397.11

2.  Total allocation to 
beneficiaries per 
capita

$99.83 $106.37 $102.45 $106.98 $110.28 $107.61

3.  Total allocation to 
beneficiaries as a 
% of sales

30.4% 30.9% 32.1% 31.6% 34.2% 34.0%

Efficiency 
Indicators

Actual 
2017-18

Budget 
2017-18

Actual 
2016-17

Actual 
2015-16

Actual 
2014-15

Actual 
2013-14

4.  Lottery operations 
expenses as a %  
of sales

7.2% 7.1% 7.4% 5.5% 5.7% 5.7%

5.  Grants operations 
expenses as a % 
of direct grants 
approved

11.9% 11.5% 10.7% 13.5% 11.7% 12.0%

Base Data  
(million)

Actual 
2017-18

Budget 
2017-18

Actual 
2016-17

Actual 
2015-16

Actual 
2014-15

Actual 
2013-14

a. Total population 2.6012 2.6234 2.5897 2.6305 2.5654 2.5206

b. Adult population 2.0638 2.0830 2.0562 2.0935 2.0429 2.0070

c. Total sales $854.56 $904.00 $827.39 $889.49 $826.35 $796.99

d.  Total allocated to 
beneficiaries*

$259.67 $279.05 $265.32 $281.41 $282.90 $271.23

e.  Total approved 
direct grants* 

$103.87 $112.70 $114.15 $118.84 $130.85 $124.46

f. Total expenses $623.01 $659.52 $604.76 $636.54 $589.76 $569.66

g.  Lottery operations 
expenses

$61.73 $64.44 $61.16 $49.30 $46.72 $45.21

h.  Grants operations 
expenses 

$12.38 $12.91 $12.25 $16.10 $15.32 $14.93

Note: * No adjustment for write back of forfeited grants.

Heather Zampatti  
Chair 
Accountable Authority 
23 August 2018

Miriam Borthwick 
Commissioner 
Accountable Authority 
23 August 2018
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Notes to the Key Performance  
Indicator tables

Effectiveness indicators
1.  This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in entering the players’ market 

that is considered to be the adult population in Western Australia. The variance in sales 
per adult to budget is a result of sales not meeting budget expectations, however 
performance compares favourably to results seen in previous years. In comparison to 
the previous financial year, a slight improvement in jackpot conditions for the two major 
jackpotting games in OZ Lotto and Powerball, and increased sales for Scratch’n’Win make 
up the majority of variance in sales. 

  Note: Adult population refers to the number of Western Australians of 16 years and over 
who are permitted by the Lotteries Commission Act (1990) to purchase lottery products.

2.  This measure relates to Lotterywest’s grant funding function which is to provide funds 
and support to the community of Western Australia. The unfavourable result this year 
compared to budget is a consequence of lower than anticipated sales and a decision 
to reduce the direct grants program to a more sustainable level. The unfavourable 
result compared to the previous year also results from the reduction of the direct grants 
program to a sustainable level.

3.  This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in converting sales revenue to 
community grants. This year’s result is slightly below that budgeted primarily due to the 
decision to reduce the direct grants program to a sustainable level. The unfavourable 
result compared to the previous year also results from the decision to reduce the direct 
grants program to a sustainable level.

Efficiency indicators
4.  This indicator shows the efficiency of Lotterywest in generating its sales revenue. It 

excludes the Grants Operations expenses. The lower sales result had a slight adverse 
impact on this indicator in comparison to budget. The indicator however compares 
favourably to the prior year mainly as a result of higher sales whilst expenditure was 
largely consistent.   

  Note: Reclassification of accounting allocation between service types occurred in 2016-17.  
This new classification applies to future years, however it has not been applied 
retrospectively to prior years. 

5.  This measure shows the ratio of expenditure associated with the grants distribution to not 
for profit and benevolent organisations. The unfavourable result is a reflection of reduced 
cost attributed to grants making and a lower grant program.

Base data
  (a) and (b) Lotterywest uses population figures sourced from the Australian Bureau of 

Statistics (ABS) in calculating its performance indicators. 

  The total population of Western Australia is used for Community Grants indicators as all 
Western Australians benefit from the community funding grants program.  

  The adult population figures are used for Lottery Product indicators as only adults (aged 
16 years and over) are permitted to purchase lottery products in Western Australia.

  Beneficiaries refer to the allocation prescribed in the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 to 
the Hospital Fund, the Sports Account, the Arts Account and to eligible organisations of 
"approved purposes".

(c)   This shows Lotterywest’s total annual gross sales for the financial year 2017-18. It excludes 
Other Income derived by Lotterywest.

(d)   This item shows the total of all statutory and direct grants allocated for 2017-18, including 
forfeited amounts reallocated from prior years. 

(e)  This item shows the total direct grants allocated for 2017-18, including forfeited amounts 
reallocated from prior years. For the purpose of these Indicators, the Goods and Services 
Tax (GST) has been excluded from expense calculations.

(f)  Total lottery expenses includes lotteries operations expenses $61.73M, grants operations 
expenses $12.38M, cost of sales (consists of prizes $482.5M, retailers’ commission $63.2M 
and printing costs $3.2M). Payments of GST on the gaming margin are excluded on the 
basis that such payments are refunded by the State Government.

(g)   Lottery expenses reflect all operational costs associated with selling of lottery products 
(excluding cost of sales and GST).

(h)   Grants expenses reflect the total costs in undertaking the grant making administration 
and distribution function.



Disclosures and legal compliance

Ministerial directives
No ministerial directives were issued during the year.

Governance disclosures
Enabling legislation
The Lotteries Commission (trading as Lotterywest) operates 
under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (the Act) and its 
subsidiary legislation. Lotterywest’s functions under the Act 
are to conduct lotteries and to perform any other function 
vested by the Act (primarily concerning the assessment, 
distribution and administration of grants).

Our subsidiary legislation includes:

• Lotteries Commission Regulations 1991

• Lotteries Commission (Authorised Lotteries) Rules 2016

• Lotteries Commission (Designated Authorities) Regulations 1998

• Lotteries Commission (Instant Lottery) Rules 1996

• Lotteries Commission (Policy Instruments) Regulations 2010

Other key legislation impacting on Lotterywest’s 
activities include:

• A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 (Cwth)

• Associations Incorporation Act 2015

• Auditor General Act 2006

• Betting Control Act 1954

• Industrial Relations Act 1979

• Interactive Gambling Act 2001 (Cwth)

• Interactive Gambling Regulations 2001 (Cwth)

• Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993

• Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984

• Occupational Safety and Health Regulations 1996

• Patents Act 1990 (Cwth)

• Privacy Act 1988 (Cwth)

• Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003

• Public Sector Management Act 1994

• Retail Trading Hours Act 1987

• Salaries and Allowances Act 1975

• Spam Act 2003 (Cwth)

• State Records Act 2000

• State Supply Commission Act 1991

• State Superannuation Act 2000

• Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996

• Superannuation Guarantee Charge Act 1992 (Cwth)

• Superannuation Act 2005 (Cwth)

• Trade Marks Act 1995 (Cwth)

• Unclaimed Money Act 1990

• Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981

• Workplace Gender Equality Act 2012 (Cwth)

• Betting Control Regulations 1978

• Charitable Trusts Act 1962

• Competition and Consumer Act 2010 (Cwth)

• Competition Policy Reform (Western Australia) Act 1996

• Copyright Act 1968 (Cwth)

• Corporations Act 2001 (Cwth)

• Corruption, Crime and Misconduct Act 2003

• Disability Services Act 1993

• Electronic Transactions Act 1999 (Cwth)

• Electronic Transactions Act 2011

• Equal Opportunity Act 1984

• Financial Management Act 2006

• Financial Transaction Reports Act 1995

• Financial Transaction Reports Act 1988 (Cth)

• Freedom of Information Act 1992

• Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986 (Cwth)

• Fringe Benefits Tax Assessment Act 1986 (Cwth)

• Gaming and Betting (Contracts and Securities) Act 1985

• Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987

• Gaming and Wagering Commission Regulations 1988

• Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries 
Levy) Act 2000

• Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries 
Levy) Regulations 2000
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Conflict of interest
The Public Sector Commission Code of Conduct and the 
Lotterywest Code of Conduct apply to the management of 
conflicts of interest held by Commissioners or officers. 

Lotterywest provides grants to a broad range of not-for-profit 
beneficiaries. Commissioners disclose standing declarations 
in respect of any interests they may hold which they perceive 
may result in a conflict arising. In matters which may extend 
beyond mere association, Commissioners and officers are 
required to disclose the full extent of their interest and abstain 
from voting or participating in the decision making process. 

Related party transactions 
The Accounting Standards apply to the disclosure of related 
party transactions in the financial statements. 

At the date of this report, no senior officers or firms which 
senior officers are members, or entities in which senior 
officers have substantial interest had any interests in existing 
or proposed contracts with Lotterywest other than normal 
contracts of employment for services.

Directors and officers liability insurance
An insurance policy indemnifies Board members and 
directors (as defined in Part 3 of the Statutory Corporations 
(Liability of Directors) Act 1996) against liability under Section 
13 and 14 of that Act. The 2017-18 premium was $15,367.

Board and committee remuneration
Name Salary Super Benefit Period of Membership Total

Chair Heather Zampatti 62,475 5,440 12 months 67,915

Member Miriam Borthwick 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

Member Stephen Carre 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

Member Kingsley Dixon 18,221 1,731 7 months 19,952

Member Andrea Hall 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

Member Maria Harries 15,618 1,483 6 months 17,101

Member Elisabeth McLellan 15,618 1,483 6 months 17,101

Member Garry Trinder 15,618 1,483 6 months 17,101

TOTAL 221,258 20,521 241,779
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Other legal requirements
Expenditure (including GST) incurred by 
Lotterywest for the year was:
Advertising:

$

Getting Hectic 240,617

Longtail Communications 791,140

Marketforce 3,150,447

Total 4,182,204

Direct mail:

$

Total Nil

Market research:

$

ACIL Allen Consulting 22,000 

Colmar Bruton Research 43,122

Faster Horses 83,600 

Marketforce 13,200

Metrix Consulting 289,080

OMD 27,170

Thinkfield 1,650

Total 479,822

Media advertising:

$

Carat 11,098,335

OMD 3,344,504

Total 14,442,839

Recordkeeping Plan and management
Lotterywest’s Recordkeeping Plan was approved by the State 
Records Office in November 2017. The Plan and the Records 
and Information Management Policy are accessible to all 
staff through Lotterywest’s intranet.

In May 2018, Lotterywest successfully replaced its customised 
corporate Electronic Document and Records Management 
System with Content Manager. The implementation included:

• A major review of the records management governance 
framework;

• Over 90% of staff trained in use of the new system; and

• Revision and relaunch of the online Recordkeeping 
Awareness Training. 

Lotterywest requires all staff to complete this training every 
three years. The KPI of 80% has been met.

Lotterywest is in the final stages of drafting a new five-year 
functional Retention and Disposal Authority.

Other disclosures 
Freedom of Information 
Action taken in respect of applications received during the 
year under the Freedom of Information Act 1992 was:

2016-17 2017-18

FOI applications received 1 2

FOI applications finalised 1 2

Average number of days to 
finalise

22 43

FOI decisions reconsidered by 
the FOI Commissioner

2 -

Public interest disclosures
During the year Lotterywest did not receive any Public 
Interest Disclosures within the meaning of the Public Interest 
Disclosure Act 2003.

Disclosures and legal compliance
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DAIP outcomes
Lotterywest published its new five year Disability Access and 
Inclusion Plan (DAIP) 2017-21 in July 2017. The Plan aims to 
provide people with disability the same opportunity as other 
people to access our facilities, information, products, services 
and employment opportunities, and contribute to public 
consultation and make complaints. The Plan has a strong 
emphasis on improving the accessibility of our digital product 
and service offerings and we are committed to working 
toward meeting the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0. 

In additional to the Lotterywest grants provided to disability 
organisations during the year, we implemented numerous 
improvements to our Retail Link Portal, direct marketing 
material, Play Online channel and corporate website that 
improved user experience.

Our achievements include:

• Information on our website about how organisations can 
improve accessibility for eligible events through our grants; 

• Amended internal policies and processes to ensure staff 
and visitors with mobility restrictions can easily access 
Lotterywest Head Office;

• Better furniture options in reception to accommodate 
customers with mobility restrictions; and

• Installation of TTY in the Contact Centre and training 
provided to staff. 

The Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 2017-21 is available 
on Lotterywest’s website.

Compliance with Public 
Sector Standards and 
Ethical Codes 
Lotterywest as a public sector agency is required to 
comply with Public Sector Standards in Human Resource 
Management (HRM) and the Public Sector Code of Ethics.

Action taken by Lotterywest to ensure compliance includes:

• Information about HRM Standards and the Commissioners 
Instructions are made available to all employees;

• Human resource practises and policies are regularly 
reviewed to ensure they are consistent with HRM Standards 
and the Commissioners Instructions; and 

• Human resource processes are reviewed to ensure 
compliance with HRM Standards and the Commissioners 
Instructions.

There were no breaches of Standards in 2017-18.

Lotterywest Code of 
Conduct and Public Sector 
Code of Ethics 
Lotterywest’s Code of Conduct was reviewed during the year. 
The Code of Conduct and the Public Sector Code of Ethics 
are provided to all new employees and are available on the 
Lotterywest intranet. 

Formal Accountable Ethical Decision Making training is 
provided to all new employees and refresher training is 
organised every two years. 

Confidentiality Agreements and National Police Clearances 
are required of all employees and contractors.
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Occupational safety, 
health and injury 
management
In accordance with the requirements of the Occupational Safety 
and Health Act 1984, Workers Compensation Act 1981 and 
Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular.

Commitment to occupational safety,  
health and injury management
The health and wellbeing of staff is of paramount concern 
to Lotterywest. Fortunately in 2017-18 no significant lost time 
injury incidents occurred. Lotterywest maintains appropriate 
Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) policies, an OSH 
committee and injury management system to support this 
commitment to staff well-being.  

Lotterywest’s OSH Committee is the formal mechanism for 
consultation and reporting between management and staff. 
OSH Committee meetings were held twice during the year.

Lotterywest complies with the injury management 
requirements of the Workers Compensation and Injury 
Management Act 1981.  In 2017-18 there were no new incidents 
requiring return to work plans.

An assessment of Lotterywest’s OSH management system 
using a recognised assessment tool has not been undertaken 
and is scheduled to be done in conjunction with the review of 
Lotterywest’s Strategic Workforce Plan in 2019-20.  As a result, 
there are currently no agreed actions to be completed.

Occupational safety, health and injury 
management performance results

Measure Actual Results Target
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Number of 
fatalities

0 0 0 0

Number of 
lost time injury 
and disease 
incidence

4 3 0 0 or 10% 
reduction

Number of 
severe claims

1 0 0 0

Lost time injury 
and disease 
incident rate 

2 1 0 0 or 10% 
reduction

Lost time injury 
and severity rate

25 0 0 0 or 10% 
reduction

% injured 
workers 
return within 
13 weeks

75% 100% n/a >50%

% injured 
workers 
return within 
26 weeks

66% n/a n/a >80%

% managers 
undertaking 
OSH training 
within three 
years

70% 25% 71% >80%

Unauthorised use of 
credit cards 
Officers of Lotterywest hold corporate credit cards where 
their functions warrant. During the year seven employees 
inadvertently used the corporate credit card for personal 
transactions. The matter was not referred for any disciplinary 
action as the Chief Finance Officer noted prompt advice 
and settlement of the personal use amount and that the 
nature of the expenditure was immaterial, inadvertent and 
characteristic of an honest mistake.

2016-17 2017-18

Aggregate amount of personal use 
expenditure 

$682 $185

Aggregate amount settled within five 
working days

$52 $78

Aggregate amount settled after five 
working days

$630 $107

Aggregate amount outstanding at 
balance date

$0 $0

Disclosures and legal compliance
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Risk and audit 
Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) assists 
the Lotterywest Board in fulfilling its corporate governance 
and oversight responsibility in relation to financial reports, 
internal controls structure, risk management and the internal 
and external audit processes.

Membership of the ARMC comprises: 
Committee Chair – Andrea Hall (Commissioner)
Committee Member – Heather Zampatti (Board Chair)
Committee Member – Stephen Carre (Commissioner) 

During 2017-18 the ARMC met on four occasions.

Lotterywest is audited by the Office of the Auditor General and 
consulting internal audit services were provided by KPMG.

Risk management
The Lotterywest Risk Management Framework and risk 
appetite were reviewed during the year. The objectives of the 
framework are to:

• Provide a structured and systematic approach to the 
process of managing risk within Lotterywest;

• Provide the Board with confidence that risks are being 
effectively managed throughout the organisation;

• Ensure clear accountabilities for risk management;

• Provide the tools to identify the inherent, residual and 
acceptable risk levels;

• Assess the effectiveness of control measures and what 
actions are to be taken;

• Encourage a “risk aware” culture and informed risk-taking 
while ensuring appropriate measures are taken to protect 
the organisation and maintain stakeholder confidence; and

• Ensure that risk management is a living and dynamic 
process, appropriately embedded in business functions 
and operations.

Information Security 
Framework
Lotterywest is certified under the World Lottery Association 
(WLA) Security Control Standard which requires compliance 
with ISO 27001 “Information Security Management”. 
WLA certification fosters continuous improvement of our 
business, systems and key processes. It is vital in driving 
professionalism and security across the organisation. 
Lotterywest recently underwent the re-certification audit 
process and was successfully accredited to the new standard 
until 25 August 2019.

Substantive equality 
Lotterywest has developed and implemented a Workforce 
Plan which includes goals, targets and initiatives to address 
equity and diversity groups across Lotterywest in accordance 
with the Equal Opportunity Act 1984.

During the year, Lotterywest achieved the following Equity 
Index for Women.

2016-17 2017-18

Lotterywest 81% 86%

WA Public Sector 
average

74% 74%

Major capital projects
Total capital expenditure during the year was $5.8 million.

Expenditure for major capital projects undertaken by 
Lotterywest during the year was:

$M

Retail transformation project $4.71

Powerball game changes $0.24

Employees
The number of employees at Lotterywest at 30 June is:

 2016-17 2017-18

Full time permanent 173 152

Full time contract 51 52

Part time 14 14

Secondment 3 2

TOTAL 241 220
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Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Certification of Financial Statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2018
The accompanying financial statements of the Lotteries 
Commission have been prepared in compliance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from 
proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial 
transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2018  
and the financial position as at 30 June 2018.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances 
which would render the particulars included in the financial 
statements misleading or inaccurate.

Jeremy Hubble  
Chief Finance Officer 
23 August 2018

 
 
Heather Zampatti  
Chair 
Accountable Authority 
23 August 2018

Miriam Borthwick 
Commissioner 
Accountable Authority 
23 August 2018
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Financial Statements
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2018

Lotterywest has pleasure in presenting its audited general purpose financial statements for the financial reporting period  
ended 30 June 2018 which provides users with the information about Lotterywest’s stewardship of resource entrusted to it.  
The financial information is presented in the following structure:

Financial Statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income....................................  51   

Statement of Financial Position ................................................51

Statement of Changes in Equity  ............................................. 52

Statement of Cash Flows ......................................................... 52     

Notes to the Financial Statements     
1.  Basis of preparation ......................................................... 53     

2.  Lotterywest outputs .........................................................  53    

3.  Our income sources .........................................................  54   

 3.1 Sale of lottery products ............................................. 54

 3.2 Interest revenue ......................................................... 55

 3.3 Other revenue ............................................................ 55

 3.4 Gains ........................................................................... 55

 3.5 Grants from State Government ................................ 55

4.  Use of our funding ............................................................ 56     

 4.1 Operating expenses ................................................. 56

 4.2 Distribution to grant beneficiaries ........................... 57

5.  Assets .................................................................................  58    

 5.1 Key assets .................................................................. 58

 5.1.1 Non-current assets classified as held for sale ....... 58

 5.1.2 Property, plant and equipment ................................ 59

 5.1.3 Intangible assets ........................................................ 61

 5.2 Other assets ............................................................... 62

 5.2.1 Inventories .................................................................. 62

 5.2.2 Receivables ................................................................ 62

6.  Financing............................................................................. 62

 6.1 Cash and cash equivalents ...................................... 63

 6.2 Held to maturity financial assets ............................. 64

 6.3 Commitments ............................................................ 64

7.  Liabilities ............................................................................. 65     

 7.1 Payables ..................................................................... 65

 7.2 Provisions ................................................................... 66

 7.3 Other liabilities ........................................................... 68

8.  Risks and contingencies ................................................... 68     

 8.1 Financial risk management...................................... 68

 8.2 Contingent assets and liabilities .............................. 72

9.  Other disclosures ............................................................... 73     

 9.1 Equity........................................................................... 73     

 9.2  Future impact of Australian Accounting  
Standards not yet operative ..................................... 73

 9.3 Assets and services received free of charge  ..........74    

 9.4 Remuneration of auditors ..........................................74     

 9.5 Compensation of key management personnel ......74     

 9.6 Related party transactions ........................................75     

 9.7 Related and affiliated bodies ....................................76

 9.8  Events occurring after the end of the 
reporting period .........................................................76

 9.9 Supplementary financial information.......................76

 9.10 Explanatory statement ...............................................76
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note
2018 
$000

2017 
$000

INCOME
Revenue

Sale of lottery products 3.1 854,564 827,395
Interest revenue 3.2 8,095 8,358
Other revenue 3.3 9,650 16,426

Total revenue 872,309 852,179
Gains 3.4 1,612 -
Total income 873,921 852,179

EXPENSES
Cost of lottery sales 3.1 582,512 564,303
Lotteries operations 4.1 61,733 61,162
Grants and community development operations 4.1 12,385 12,255
Distribution to grant beneficiaries 4.2 255,785 261,153

Total expenses 912,415 898,873
Loss before grants from State Government (38,494) (46,694)
Grants from State Government 3.5 33,622 33,009
Loss for the period (4,872) (13,685)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified to profit and loss in this or subsequent period

Changes in asset revaluation 9.1 (973) (2,095)
Total other comprehensive income (973) (2,095)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period (5,845) (15,780)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
See also Note 2 “Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service”.

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018

Note
2018 
$000

2017 
$000

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6.1 17,980 21,799
Inventories 5.2.1 1,553 1,393
Receivables 5.2.2 11,747 8,339
Held to maturity financial assets 6.2 79,000 48,289
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 5.1.1  -   615
Prepayments 933 740

Total Current Assets 111,213 81,175
Non-Current Assets

Held to maturity financial assets 6.2 155,938 174,900
Property, plant and equipment 5.1.2 27,845 34,799
Intangibles 5.1.3 12,386 10,413

Total Non-Current Assets 196,169 220,112
TOTAL ASSETS 307,382 301,287

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Payables 7.1 174,069 165,583
Provisions 7.2 26,242 32,104
Other liabilities 7.3 5,291 7,637

Total Current Liabilities 205,602 205,324
Non-Current Liabilities

Payables 7.1 29,470 17,220
Provisions 7.2 1,429 1,615
Other liabilities 7.3 3,688 4,090

Total Non-Current Liabilities 34,587 22,925
TOTAL LIABILITIES 240,189 228,249
NET ASSETS 67,193 73,038
EQUITY

Asset revaluation reserve 9.1 5,472 6,445
Retained earnings 9.1 61,721 66,593

TOTAL EQUITY 67,193 73,038

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note
Asset  

Revaluation 
$000

Retained  
Earnings 

$000

Total  
Equity 
$000

Balance at 1 July 2016 8,540 80,278 88,818
Profit / (loss) for the period 9.1 - (13,685) (13,685)
Other comprehensive income 9.1 (2,095) - (2,095)
Total comprehensive profit / (loss) for the period (2,095) (13,685) (15,780)

Balance at 30 June 2017 6,445 66,593 73,038

Balance at 1 July 2017 6,445 66,593 73,038
Profit / (loss) for the period 9.1  -   (4,872) (4,872)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 9.1 (973)  -   (973)
Total comprehensive profit / (loss)  
for the period

(973) (4,872) (5,845)

Balance at 30 June 2018 5,472 61,721 67,193 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 2018 
$000

2017 
$000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Sale of lottery products 854,973 832,951
Interest received 7,813 8,416
GST receipts on sales 506 643
Lease incentives - 5,166

Payments
Prizes and retailers’ commissions (531,956) (515,943)
Employee benefits (29,640) (27,196)
Supplies and services (39,005) (41,842)
Direct grants (94,105) (116,492)
GST payments on purchases (19,930) (23,085)
GST payments to taxation authority (13,651) (11,033)

Net cash provided by operating activities 6.1.2 135,005 111,580

Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts

Proceeds from sales of assets held for sale 620 -
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 3 10
Proceeds from maturing investments  -   4,274

Payments
             Purchase of non-current assets (5,523) (13,727)

Purchase of investments (11,749) -
Net cash from investing activities (16,649) (9,443)

Cash flows (to) / from State Government
GST reimbursements 33,538 32,745
Statutory payments to beneficiaries (155,713) (150,000)

Net cash (provided to) State Government (122,175) (117,255)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,819) (15,118)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 21,799 36,917
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 6.1.1 17,980 21,799

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1. Basis of preparation
Lotterywest is a Statutory Authority and a not-for-profit reporting entity for the purposes  
of Australian Accounting Standards.  The nature of operations and principal activities are  
described in the Agency Performance which does not form part of these financial statements.

These annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Accountable Authority  
of Lotterywest on 23 August 2018.

Statement of compliance

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:

1) The Financial Management Act 2006 (FMA)
2) The Treasurer’s Instructions (the Instructions or TI)
3) Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) including applicable interpretations

4)  Where appropriate, those AAS paragraphs applicable for not-for-profit entities  
have been applied.

The FMA and the Instructions take precedence over AAS. Several AAS are modified by the 
Instructions to vary application, disclosure format and wording. Where modification is required 
and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that 
modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars applying the accrual  
basis of accounting and using the historical cost convention. Certain balances will  
apply a different measurement basis (such as the fair value basis). Where this is the  
case the different measurement basis is disclosed in the associated note. All values  
are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

Judgements and estimates

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about financial  
information being presented. The significant judgements and estimates made in the  
preparation of these financial statements are disclosed in the notes where amounts  
affected by those judgements and/or estimates are disclosed. Estimates and associated  
assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical experience  
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2. Lotterywest outputs
How Lotterywest operates

This section includes information regarding the nature of Lotterywest’s income and how this  
income is utilised to achieve its objectives.

Schedule of income and expenses by service

Service 1 
Sale of lottery  

products

 Service 2 
Grants and other 

distributions 
Total

2018
$000

2017
$000

2018
$000

2017
$000

2018
$000

2017
$000

INCOME
Sales 854,564 827,395 - - 854,564 827,395
Interest income 8,095 8,358 - - 8,095 8,358
Other revenue 9,650 16,426 - - 9,650 16,426
Gains 1,612 - - - 1,612 -
Total income 873,921 852,179 - - 873,921 852,179

EXPENSES
Cost of sales 582,512 564,303 - - 582,512 564,303
Lotteries operations 61,733 61,162 - - 61,733 61,162
Grants and community  
development operations

 -   - 12,385 12,255 12,385 12,255

Total expenses excluding  
returns to beneficiaries

644,245 625,465 12,385 12,255 656,630 637,720

Profit / (loss) before  
returns to beneficiaries 

229,676 226,714 (12,385) (12,255) 217,291 214,459

Grants from State Government 33,622 33,009 - - 33,622 33,009
Grants transfer (263,298) (259,723) 263,298 259,723  -   -
Amount available for distribution  -   - 250,913 247,468 250,913 247,468
Total returns to beneficiaries  -   - 255,785 261,153 255,785 261,153
Loss for the period  -   - (4,872) (13,685) (4,872) (13,685)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
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3. Our income sources 
How we obtain our income
This section provides additional information about how Lotterywest obtains its income  
and the relevant accounting policy notes that govern the recognition and measurement  
of this income. The primary income received and the relevant notes are:

Note 2018
$000

2017
$000

Income
Sale of lottery products 3.1 854,564 827,395
Interest revenue 3.2 8,095 8,358
Other revenue 3.3 9,650 16,426
Gains 3.4 1,612 -
Grants from State Government 3.5 33,622 33,009

907,543   885,188

 
3.1 Sale of lottery products

2018 
$000

2017
$000

Sales of lottery products 854,564 827,395
Cost of lottery sales
Prizes (482,507) (465,936)
Printing costs (3,161) (2,866)
Commission paid to retailers (63,222) (62,492)
Goods and Services Tax (33,622) (33,009)

(582,512) (564,303)
Trading Profit 272,052 263,092

Margin percentage 31.8%   31.8%

Revenue recognition

Sale of lottery product revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or  
receivable. Revenue is recognised from the sale of tickets when the significant risks and  
rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

Sales revenue represents gross sales of all Lotto games, Cash 3, Soccer Pools, Super 66  
and Scratch’n’Win tickets. Sales from lotto products are recognised as at draw dates of the 
respective games. Sales from Scratch’n’Win tickets are recognised when the Scratch’n’Win  
books are activated. 

Cost of lottery sales

Prizes

Prize expense and liabilites are allocated when the sales are recognised at draw dates  
or when the Scratch’n’Win books are activated.

Allocation of prize monies range between 50% to 70% of sales. The prize allocation for  
national Lotto games is determined by the National Bloc members. 

Division One prizes are paid two weeks after the date of the draw, subject to claim.  
Other prizes are paid directly upon receipt of a valid winning ticket, which remains valid for  
up to 12 months from the date of draw. Prizes for Play Online members are automatically  
paid to the members account.

Set for Life’s 1st Prize is paid at  $20,000 per month for a period of 20 years. Set for Life games 
include a ‘demand feature’ requiring payment of the remaining face value of the prize upon  
the death of a winner to their estate. As a result, fair value reflects value at the earliest time  
the demand event could arise resulting in fair value reflecting the remaining face value of  
unpaid prizes.

Commission paid to retailers

Retailers are paid a commission for the sale of Lotterywest products. It is recognised when  
the Recipient Created Tax Invoice (RCTI) is issued to the retailers once a week. The commission 
rate is subject to annual review and approval from the Premier and Government.   
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Goods and Services Tax

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) is calculated on the gaming margin, which is defined  
as the subscription received less the amount of prizes. In accordance with the GST  
legislation, GST is attributed to the full amount of sales in advance. GST is also calculated  
on retailer and player fees.

3.2 Interest revenue
2018 2017
$000 $000

Interest revenue 8,095 8,358

Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues.

3.3 Other revenue
2018 2017
$000 $000

Forfeited prizes 5,371 11,635
Retailers fees 4,203 4,447
Players registration service fees 11 64
Other revenue 65 280

9,650 16,426

Forfeited prizes

Under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended), players have 12 months  
to claim a lottery prize. If the prize is not claimed within that period, the prize is forfeited.  
Forfeited prizes are included in the pool of funds that become available for distribution  
to the Western Australian community through Lotterywest’s direct grants program.

Retailer fees

Retailer fees comprise revenue from Lotto Service fees and Retailer Establishment fees.  
These fees are recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received  
or receivable.

The Lotto service fees represent the contribution from our retailers towards the costs  
associated with maintaining and supporting the on-line network. 

The Retailer Establishment fee represents a contribution from retailers towards Lotterywest’s  
costs associated with the establishment, relocation or change of ownership of a lottery outlet.

3.4 Gains

Gain on disposal of non-current assets
2018 
$000

2017
$000

Net proceeds from disposals of
   Land and building 620 -
   Plant and equipment  -   -
   Work of Art 3 -
Carrying amount of
   Land and building (615) -
   Plant and equipment (69) -
   Work of Art (58) -
Net gain / (loss) (119) -

Other gains 1,731 -

Total gain / (loss) 1,612 -

3.5 Grants from State Government
2018 
$000

2017
$000

GST reimbursement for gaming margin     33,622 33,009

Revenue from grants, donations, gifts or other non-reciprocal contributions that are not  
contributions by owners are recognised at fair value. Revenue is recognised when Lotterywest  
has obtained control of the contribution (that is usually the date cash is received), it is probable  
that economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount of the contribution can be reliably 
measured. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably  
determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

The State Government provides reimbursement to gaming operators (including Lotterywest)  
for GST paid on the operators’ margin. Lotterywest applies the reimbursement to maintain  
the level of returns to beneficiaries.

The GST paid on the gaming margin is disclosed as a cost of sales (see Note 3.1). Treasurer’s 
Instruction 1102 requires that reimbursement of GST is to be disclosed as a Grant from the  
State Government rather than offset against the cost to which it applies.
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4. Use of our funding
Expenses incurred in the delivery of services

This section provides additional information about how Lotterywest’s funding is applied and 
the accounting policies that are relevant for an understanding of the items recognised in the 
financial statements. 

2018
$000

2017
$000Note

Operating expenses 4.1 74,118 73,417
Distribution to grant beneficiaries 4.2 255,785 261,153

329,903  334,570

4.1 Operating expenses

2018
$000

2017
$000Note

Employee benefits expenses 4.1.1 28,940 27,313
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4.1.2 9,649 6,695
Telecommunications and gaming system expenses 5,033 5,410
Sales, marketing and distribution expenses^ 18,844 20,868
Loss on non-current assets classified as held for sale - 1
Other expenses^^ 11,652 13,130

74,118   73,417

^   Sales, marketing and distribution expenses mainly relate to advertising and production costs  
across various channels.

^^  Total other expenses include professional fees $1.84M, employment on-cost $1.83M, property  
lease cost $1.67M and various audit fees $0.68M.  

Service type allocation

2018
$000

2017
$000

Lottery operations 61,733 61,162
Grants and community development 12,385 12,255

74,118 73,417

4.1.1 Employee benefits expenses

2018
$000

2017
$000

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits 24,360 23,897
Termination benefits 2,216 1,110
Superannuation 2,364 2,306

28,940 27,313

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits include accrued wages and leave entitlements. 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before normal retirement 
date or when an employee accepts an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of em-
ployment. Termination benefits are recognised when Lotterywest is demonstrably committed to 
terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without 
possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period are discounted to present value. Termination benefits exclude payment for accrued wag-
es or leave entitlement paid as part of termination.

Superannuation is recognised as and when the contributions fall due. It comprises contributions 
paid to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS) concurrent contributions, the West State 
Superannuation Scheme (WSS), the Government Employees Superannuation Board Schemes 
(GESBs), or other superannuation funds. 
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GSS (concurrent contributions) is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees  
and whole-of-government reporting. It is however a defined contribution plan for  
Lotterywest’s purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) paid  
to GESB extinguishes Lotterywest’s obligations to the related superannuation liability.

The Liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits  
attributable to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by  
the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made  
by Lotterywest to the GESB.

The GESB and other fund providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements  
in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements.

Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees  
vary according to commencement and implementation dates.

4.1.2 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

2018
$000

2017
$000Note

Depreciation 5.1.2

Buildings 131 180 

Leasehold improvements 450 380 

Equipment and fittings 1,114 388 

Computer equipment 1,460 613 

Total depreciation 3,155 1,561 

Amortisation 5.1.3

Intangible assets 6,493 5,134 

Total amortisation 6,493 5,134 

Total depreciation and amortisation 9,648 6,695 

All non-current assets, excluding land, are depreciated or amortised over their estimated  
useful life, consistent with the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line basis rates which are reviewed annually.   
Estimated useful lives for each class of non-current assets are as follows:

Class Useful Life

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 12 years
Equipment and fittings 5 to 10 years
Computer equipment 3 to 8 years

4.2 Distribution to grant beneficiaries

2018
$000

2017
$000

Statutory grants
State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012) 124,633 120,934 
Arts Lotteries Account 15,579 15,116 
Sports Lotteries Account 15,579 15,116 

155,791 151,166

Direct grants
University of Western Australia (Festival of Perth) 7,558 7,793 
Screenwest (Commercial film production) 7,558 7,793 
Direct grants (Net of grants not taken up)^ 84,878 94,401 

99,994 109,987

Total distribution to grant beneficiaries 255,785   261,153

^ The total of grants not taken up and reversed during the financial year was $3.88 million (2017: $4.16 million).

The Act prescribes for the following allocations from net subscriptions of all products.  
Net subscriptions comprise the following:

a)  In the case of a fixed prize game, the entry fee less any add-on comission and prize liability; 
and

b)  In the case of a pari-mutuel prize game, the entry fee less any add-on commission and the 
prize fund.
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Statutory grants

These grants are made to the credit of the Consolidated Account for subsequent  
appropriation to Agency Special Purpose Accounts.  

•   40% to the State Pool Account of the State established under National Health  
Funding Pool Act 2012 

•   5% to the Arts Lotteries Account 

•   5% to the Sports Lotteries Account.

Direct grants

In addition to the statutory grants, the Act mandates: 

•   A minimum allocation of 12.5% to eligible organisations for approved purposes; and

•   Up to 5% in total for the University of Western Australia for the Festival of Perth and Screenwest 
for Commercial Film Production.  

Any remaining surplus (including surplus reserves generated from prior periods and unclaimed 
prizes as they fall due in the reporting period) is available for distribution to eligible organisations 
as the Commission thinks fit and the Minister approves.

Direct grants to eligible organisations for approved purposes are recognised when approved 
by the Minister. Unconditional grants are paid in full upon the Minister’s approval.  Conditional 
grants are paid as and when conditions are fulfilled.

When a grant is not taken up, it is written back against the current year’s grant expenditure, 
regardless of when it was approved.

5. Assets
This section sets out both the key accounting policies and financial information about  
the performance of these assets:

5.1  Key assets

2018 
$000

2017
$000Note

Non-current assets classified as assets held for sale 5.1.1 - 615
Property, plant and equipment 5.1.2 27,845 34,799
Intangibles 5.1.3 12,386 10,413 

40,231 45,212

5.1.1  Non-current assets classified as held for sale

2018 
$000

2017
$000

Land and building (a) 615 615 

Less write-down from cost to fair value less cost 
to sell recognised in profit or loss 

-  -   

Less assets sold (615) -
-  615   

(a)  Transferred from property, plant, and equipment at fair value.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell, and are disclosed separately from other assets in the Statement 
of Financial Position. Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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5.1.2  Property, plant and equipment

Land Buildings
Leasehold

improvements
Equipment 

& fittings
Works  
of arts

Computer  
equipment

Work in  
progress Total

Year ended 30 June 2017 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

1 July 2016
Gross carrying amount 7,172 7,373 1,440 6,015 92 15,631 11,314 49,037

Accumulated depreciation  -    -   (1,359) (5,202) - (15,100) - (21,661)

Accumulated impairment loss  -    -   - -  -   -  -   
Carrying amount at start of year 7,172 7,373 81 813 92 531 11,314 27,376

Additions - - 5,199 2,118 29 2,759 2,595 12,700
Transfer from work in progress - - 186 82 - 713 - 981
Transfer to non-current assets - - - - - - (1,976) (1,976)
Classified as held for sale (330) (285) - - - - - (615)
Revaluation (513) (1,582) - - - - - (2,095)
Derecognition - - - (11) - - - (11)
Depreciation - (180) (380) (388) - (613) - (1,561)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2017 6,329 5,326 5,086 2,614 121 3,390 11,933 34,799

Land Buildings
Leasehold

improvements
Equipment 

& fittings
Works  
of arts

Computer 
equipment

Work in 
progress Total

Year ended 30 June 2018 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

1 July 2017
Gross carrying amount 6,329 5,326 5,385 7,880 121 10,432 11,933 47,406
Accumulated depreciation  -    -   (299) (5,266) - (7,042) - (12,607)
Accumulated impairment loss  -    -   - -  -   -  -   -
Carrying amount at start of year 6,329 5,326 5,086 2,614 121 3,390 11,933 34,799

Additions - - 96 1,090 - 1,925 - 3,111
Transfer from work in progress - - - 1,685 - 4,438 - 6,123
Transfer to non-current assets - - - - - - (11,933) (11,933)
Classified as held for sale - - - - - - - -
Other disposals - - - (69) (58) - - (127)
Revaluation 131 (1,104) - - - - - (973)
Derecognition - - - - - - - -
Depreciation - (131) (450) (1,115) - (1,459) - (3,155)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2018 6,460 4,091 4,732 4,205 63 8,294 - 27,845
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Property, plant and equipment 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets

Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are capitalised or recognised  
as assets and expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and  
equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed in full in the current year  
(other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of  
acquisition. This also applies to grant properties which may have reverted back to Lotterywest. 
Where a transfer of beneficial ownership in land and/or buildings from a Trust Estate  has  
occurred, at no cost or for nominal cost, the fair value is recognised at the date of the reversion.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition as an asset, Lotterywest uses the revaluation method for the measure-
ment of land and buildings and the cost method for all other assets.  Land and buildings are 
carried at their fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and accumulated impair-
ment losses. All other assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulat-
ed impairment losses.

Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on  
the basis of current market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.

When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated 
depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 
restated to the revalued amount.

Where market evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on  
the basis of existing use. This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land 
use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use buildings is determined by reference to the cost of 
replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated  
replacement cost.  Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated replace-
ment cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated  
proportionately. Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market 
evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high restricted use land) or market value of 
comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land).

Valuations of land and buildings are provided annually by the independent valuers and rec-
ognised with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying amount does not differ materially from 
the assets fair value at the end of the reporting period.

One land and building asset was revalued in 2018 by two independent valuers (Western Aus-
tralian Land Information Authority Valuation Services and LMW Perth) and the adjusted value 
recognised at 30 June 2018. Two valuations were obtained as the asset in question is likely for 
future sale once certain conditions are satisfied. Land and buildings revaluation decrements for 
2018 were $0.97 million (2017: decrement of $2.095 million). 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assess-
ing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic 
life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a 
clear distinction between market type assets and existing use assets.

Derecognition

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of assets, any revaluation surplus relating to that 
asset is retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

Impairment 

Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment 
at each reporting date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is 
estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is written 
down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset mea-
sured at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit 
or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is 
recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. 

As Lotterywest is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, 
the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated 
replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is ma-
terially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change 
in useful life.  Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated 
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future 
economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.
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The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value  
less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from  
the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair  
value is determined by reference to market based evidence. Where fair value is determined  
by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and  
the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of  
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Work in Progress

Costs associated with assets under development for use by Lotterywest are recognised  
as Work in Progress. Once completed, the assets are transferred to the appropriate asset  
account and are depreciated or amortised, as appropriate. No depreciation is provided  
during construction of assets. 

Fair value measurements

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair Value  
at end of 

Period
2018 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - - - -
Land - 6,460 - 6,460 
Buildings - 4,091 - 4,091 

- 10,551 - 10,551 

 
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period.

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair Value  
at end of 

Period
2017 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - 615 - 615
Land  -   6,329  -   6,329 
Buildings  -   5,326  -   5,326 

 -   12,270  -   12,270 

5.1.3 Intangibles

2018
$000

2017
$000Computer software

Opening balance
Gross carrying amount 41,553 39,677
Accumulated amortisation (31,140) (26,006)
Carrying amount at start of period 10,413 13,671

Additions 2,656 881
Transfer from Work in Progress 5,810 995
Amortisation expense (6,493) (5,134)
Carrying amount at end of period 12,386 10,413

Initial recognition

Acquisitions of intangible assets and internally generated intangible assets costing $5,000 or 
more are capitalised and expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred below 
$5,000 are fully expensed in the current year. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost method is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried  
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with a finite useful life is calculated for the period of the  
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis.   
All intangible assets controlled by Lotterywest have a finite useful life and zero residual value  
(i.e. computer software is five to eight years).
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Computer software

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant  
and equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated  
as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is fully expensed in the year  
of acquisition.

Development costs

Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward when the  
future economic benefits can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project  
costs are likely to exceed $5,000.

Impairment

As at 30 June 2018 there were no indications of impairment to intangible assets.  
Lotterywest held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during  
the reporting period.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment annually or when  
an indication of impairment is identified. The policy in connection with testing for  
impairment is outlined in note 5.1.2.

5.2 Other assets

2018 
$000

2017
$000Note

Inventories 5.2.1 1,553 1,393
Receivables 5.2.2 11,747 8,339
Prepayments 933 740 

14,233 10,472

 
5.2.1 Inventories

2018
$000

2017
$000

Inventories     1,553 1,393

Inventories are valued, on the first-in, first-out basis, at the lower of cost and  
net realisable value. The inventories comprise of instant lotto tickets and  
other consumables.

5.2.2 Receivables

2018
$000

2017
$000

Current
Lotterywest retailers 6,132 4,353
GST receivables 2,043 2,506
Accrued interest 1,457 1,175
Other debtors 2,115 305

11,747 8,339

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less any allowances  
for uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). Receivables from our retailers are settled on  
a weekly basis. All other receivables are generally settled within 30 days.

The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables  
identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance  
for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence  
that Lotterywest will not be able to collect the debt.  

6. Financing 
This section sets out the material balances, disclosures and risk management policies  
associated with the financing and cashflows of Lotterywest.

2018 
$000

2017
$000Note

Cash and cash equivalents 6.1               17,980 21,799
Held to maturity financial assets 6.2 234,938 223,189
Commitments 6.3 28,145 37,078

281,063 282,066
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6.1 Cash and cash equivalents

6.1.1 Reconciliation of cash

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash on hand  
and cash at bank. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of  
Cash Flows is reconciled to related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2018 
$000

2017
$000Note

Cash on hand 1 1
Cash at bank 17,979 21,798
Total per Statement of Cash Flows 17,980 21,799

6.1.2 Reconciliation of profit / (loss) to net cash flows provided by operating activities

2018 
$000

2017
$000

Profit / (loss) for the period (4,872) (13,685)
Non-cash items

Depreciation and amortisation expense 9,648 6,695 
Lease incentive amortisation (402) (336)
Services received free from charge from non State Government 23 -
Net (gain) / loss on disposal 119 1 
Other gains (1,731) -
Loss on de-recognition - 146 

Cash flows to / (from) Government
Statutory grants 155,791 151,166 
GST recoup revenue from State Government (33,622) (33,009)

(Increase) / decrease in assets
GST reimbursement receivable/(payable) 463 (730)
Trade debtors (1,779) (958)
Other debtors (1,953) 3,925 
Prepayments (193) (271)
Inventories (160) (24)
Accrued interest (282) 58 

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Other liabilities (2,346) 2,964 
Direct grants 5,889 (6,510)
Unclaimed prize payable 2,988 (4,379)
Unpaid prize payable 12,970 3,890 
Trade creditors (14) 140 
Other creditors and accruals 432 430 
Current provisions (514) (168)
Non-current provisions (186) 285 
Prize reserve provisions (5,348) 1,686 
Grants from State Government 84 264 

Net cash provided by operating activities before cash flows to 
State Government (excluding investing activities)

135,005 111,580
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6.2 Held to maturity financial assets

Lotterywest’s financial investments are made in accordance with the Financial Management  
Act 2006 and the Trustees Act 1962 (as amended).

2018
$000

2017
$000

Current investments (maturity less than 1 year)
Short term products 79,000 48,289 

Non-current investments (maturity more than 1 year) 
Floating rate instruments 155,938  174,900 

Total held to maturity financial assets^ 234,938  223,189

^ Market value at 30 June 2018 was $237.7 million.

Lotterywest only has investments classified as held to maturity investments. At initial  
recognition, all held to maturity investments are measured at fair value. The fair value is  
usually the fair value of the consideration given, including any attributable transaction costs.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates 
are classified as held-to-maturity when the intention and ability to hold to maturity is known.  
Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification.

Held to maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition, over the period to maturity.  For investments carried at amortised cost, gains  
and losses are recognised in profit and loss when the investments are derecognised or  
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Lotterywest assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a  
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

6.3 Commitments

Lotterywest typically has commitments for property leases, vehicle leases, technology  
service agreements which extend over several years and for approved capital works.  
The commitments disclosed below are inclusive of GST where relevant.

6.3.1 Non-cancellable lease commitments

 Commitments in relation to leases contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the 
financial statements as liabilities are payable as follows:

2018 
$000

2017 
$000

Non-cancellable property lease commitments(a) 
Within 1 year 1,769 1,709
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 7,362 7,135
Later than 5 years 10,601 12,634

19,732 21,478
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments(b)

Within 1 year 76 86
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 129 59

205 145
Total lease commitments 19,937 21,623 

(a)  The property leases are non-cancellable and have terms ranging from one year to 12 years, with rent 
payable monthly in advance. Depending on the terms and conditions of the lease concerned, rent 
review provisions exist which generally result in rental increases throughout the lease term. Options exist 
in most leases which permit leases to be extended under the prevailing lease terms and conditions, 
resulting in leases being extended beyond their original lease term.

  Equal instalments of the lease payments are expensed over the lease term (i.e. on a straight line basis 
over the lease term), as this is representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased 
vehicles and business premises. Total lease rental recognised as Other Expenses during the year  
30 June 2018 was $1.67 million.

  Lease incentives received from entering into operating leases are recognised as unearned income  
and amortised on a straight line basis over the life of the lease term.

(b)  These amounts were provided by the Department of Finance and relate to Lotterywest’s motor vehicle 
lease arrangements which operate under the State Fleet Funding Facility contract. Lotterywest’s vehicle 
leases are generally for three to four years. 
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6.3.2 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure commitments in relation to information technology capital purchases  
contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities  
are payable as follows:

2018
$000

2017
$000

Within 1 year 186 3,717 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

186 3,717 

6.3.3 Other commitments

Other expenditure commitments in relation to information technology maintenance, support  
and various inventory items contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial 
statements as liabilities are payable as follows:

2018
$000

2017
$000

Within 1 year 2,981 3,265
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 5,041 8,473

8,022 11,738

7. Liabilities
This section sets out those liabilities that arose from Lotterywest’s controlled operations  
and incurred during normal operations: 

2018
$000

2017
$000Note

Payables 7.1               203,539 182,803
Provisions 7.2 27,671 33,719
Other liabilities 7.3 8,979 11,727

240,189 228,249

7.1 Payables

Payables, including amounts not yet billed, are recognised when Lotterywest becomes  
obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services for which  
settlement has not yet occurred. Payables, other than those that relate to prizes and returns  
to beneficiaries are generally settled within 30 days and as a result the carrying amount is  
considered to be equivalent to fair value.

2018 
$000

2017 
$000

CURRENT
Prizes
Unclaimed prizes in current year(a) 26,566 23,578 
Unpaid prize payables(b) 1,730 1,010 

28,296 24,588
Returns to beneficiaries
State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012) 1,586 1,530 
Arts Lotteries Account 201 190 
Sports Lotteries Account 201 190 
Direct grants(c) 135,109 129,220 

137,097 131,130
Other
Trade creditors 3,774 3,788 
Other creditors and accruals 4,902 6,077 

8,676 9,865
174,069 165,583 

NON-CURRENT
Prizes
Unpaid prize payables(b) 29,470 17,220 
Total payables 203,539 182,803 

(a) Prizes won but not yet claimed.

(b)  Discontinued Scratch’n’Win game where the prize is paid in the form of an annuity and the Set for Life 
1st prize future maturity payments. Amounts payable more than 12 months post balance sheet date are 
classified as non-current. 

(c) Direct grants approved but not yet paid at year end.  
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7.2 Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount.  Lotterywest only recognises a  
provision where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event 
and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

2018 
$000

2017 
$000

CURRENT
Employee benefits

Annual leave(a) 2,333 2,475 
Long service leave(b) 2,546 2,886 

Other provisions
Employment on-costs(c) 314 346 
Prize reserve provisions(d) 21,049 26,397 

26,242 32,104 
NON-CURRENT
Employee benefits

Long service leave(b) 1,138 1,313 
Superannuation entitlements(e) 218 218 

Other provisions
Employment on-costs(c) 73 84 

1,429 1,615 
Total provisions 27,671 33,719

(a)  Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Assessments 
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

2018 
$000

2017
$000

    Annual leave
    Within 12 months 1,399 1,488 
    More than 12 months 934 987 

2,333 2,475

  The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments  
to be made in relation to services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

(b)  Unconditional long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there  
is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the  
reporting period.  

  Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current  
liabilities because Lotterywest has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability 
until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

 Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

2018
$000

2017
$000 

Long service leave
Within 12 months 967 1,254 
More than 12 months 2,717 2,945 

3,684 4,199

 Key estimates and judgements – Long service leave

  The long service leave liabilities are calculated at present value as Lotterywest does not ex-
pect to wholly settle the amounts within 12 months. The present value is measured taking into 
account the present value of expected future payments to be made in relation to services 
provided by employees up to the reporting date. These payments are estimated using the 
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement, and discounted using market 
yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity 
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

  In calculating Lotterywest’s long service leave provision, several estimations and assumptions 
have been made.  These include expected future salary rates, salary inflation, discount rates, 
employee retention rates and expected future payments.  

(c)  The settlement of annual leave and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment 
of employment on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance.  The provision is the 
present value of expected future payments.  

  Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits 
and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which 
they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other Expenses’ and 
are not included as part of ‘Employee Benefits Expense’. The related liability is included in 
‘Employment On-Costs Provisions’.
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2018 
$000

2017 
$000

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year 430 422 

Additional/(reversals of) provisions recognised 156 172 
Payment/other sacrifices of economic benefit (199) (164)

Carrying amount at end of year 387 430 

(d)  The prize reserve provisions are used to guarantee jackpots and bonus draws in the  
jackpotting lottery games and the advertised prizes on the non-jackpotting games.  
The levels of prize reserves are administered by the Australian Lotto Bloc following  
pre-determined guidelines and funded by way of an allocation from each draw into  
the respective Prize Reserve funds operated by each state. The settlement of the prize  
reserve provision is expected within the next 12 months.

2018 
$000

2017
$000

Prize reserve provisions
Carrying amount at start of year 26,397 24,711 

Additional provisions recognised 51,321 49,305 
Payments made to the prize reserve accounts and prizes paid (56,669) (47,619)

Carrying amount at end of year 21,049 26,397 

(e)  The liability for superannuation entitlements has been derived from information provided  
by GESB.

Pension scheme

Lotterywest has no liability or defined benefit cost under AASB 119 arising from the Pension 
Scheme.

Gold State Super (transferred benefits)

Nature of the benefits provided by the Scheme

 Some former Pension Scheme members have transferred to Gold State Super. In respect of  
their transferred benefit the members receive a lump sum benefit at retirement, death or  
invalidity which is related to their salary during their employment and indexed during any  
deferral period after leaving public sector employment.

Description of the regulatory framework

The Scheme operates under the State Superanniation Act 2000 (Western Australia) and the 
State Superannuation Regulations 2001 (Western Australia). Although the scheme is not fomally 
subject to the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) (SIS) legislation, the Western Australian 
government has undertaken (in a Heads of Government Agreement) to operate the scheme in 
accordance with the spirit of the SIS legislation.

Pre-transfer Benefit Gold State Superannuation Scheme
2018 
$000

2017 
$000

Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) 218 218
Net defined benefit liability 218 218

Reconciliation of DBO
Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 218 231 
Interest cost (i) 2 5 
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from  changes in demographic assumptions(i) -  -   
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from  changes in financial assumptions(i) -  -   
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from  liability experience(i) (2) (12)
Benefits paid - (6)
Present value of DBO at end of the year 218 218 

(i)  Due to the immaterial effect of actuarial (gains)/losses in the defined benefit obligation, the net movements 
have been recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income – Expenses Lottery Operations. 

Significant actuarial assumptions at the reporting date

Assumptions to determine start of DBO and  
defined benefit cost for the current year

2018 
%

2017 
%

Discount rate (active members)(ii) 2.26 2.26
Expected salary increase rate 3.70 3.50

 
Assumptions to determine DBO at the valuation date

2018 
%

2017 
%

Discount rate (active members)(ii) 2.60 2.26

Expected salary increase rate 4.20 3.70

(ii) The discount rate as at 31 May 2018, based on the Government bond maturing in April 2026.
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Funding arrangements

The employer contributes, as required, to meet the benefits paid.

Expected contributions

Employer contributions of $218,000 are expected to be paid to the Gold State Superannuation 
Scheme in the subsequent annual reporting period.

Maturity profile of DBO
The weighted average duration of Lotterywest’s defined benefit obligation is less than one year. 
The obligation is currently payable and no liability will remain once the obligation is paid.

7.3 Other liabilities

2018
$000

2017
$000

CURRENT
Sales in advance(a) 4,889 7,235 
Lease incentive unearned income(b) 402 402

5,291 7,637
NON-CURRENT
Lease incentive unearned income(b) 3,688 4,090 

3,688 4,090
Total other liabilities 8,979 11,727 

(a)  This represents tickets sold which relate to games where the draw will occur after the financial year  
and therefore the proceeds have not been recognised as revenue for the period.  

(b)  Lease incentives received from entering into operating leases and amortised on a straight line basis 
over 12 years, being the life of the lease term.

8. Risks and contingencies
This note sets out the key risk management policies and measurement techniques of Lotterywest.

Notes
Financial risk management 8.1
Contingent assets and liabilities     8.2

8.1 Financial risk management

Financial instruments held by Lotterywest are cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, floating 
rate notes, floating rate deposits, receivables and payables. Lotterywest has limited exposure 
to financial risks attributed to investments held. Lotterywest holds two investment portfolios, one 
being a general portfolio of relatively short duration and the other being a ‘Set for Life’ portfolio 
of longer duration to meet annuity liabilities. Lotterywest’s investment portfolios are managed 
by the Western Australia Treasury Corporation within the constraints of the Trustee’s Act and 
Lotterywest investment policy and approved service level agreement which include strategies on 
managing the risks identified below. 

(a) Summary of risks and risk management

Credit risk

Credit risk arises where there is a possibility that counterparties will default on interest payments 
or capital repayments resulting in financial losses to Lotterywest.

In measuring risk at a counterparty level there are three components which include the proba-
bility of default by the counterparty (a), the current exposure to the counterparty (b), and the likely 
recovery ratio on defaulted obligations (c).

(a)  Probability of default: Lotterywest will only deal with counterparties that have a minimum 
credit rating issued by Standard and Poors of A- long term and Moody’s of A3 long term, 
which is above investment grade (BBB). Although investment in BBB grade investments short 
term under certain conditions is possible. 
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(b)   Current exposure to counterparties:  Lotterywest deals mainly with major financial  
institutions.  The average exposure to these counterparties was $311.11 million (2017: $327.46 
million).  The maximum exposure to each counterparty is determined by their credit rating. 
The higher the credit rating the greater the maximum exposure, subject  
to upper limits counterparty’s and aggregate class limits.

(c)   Likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations:  Lotterywest does not trade securities,  
nor are there any investments in securities which have embedded derivatives.  
Consequently Lotterywest does not have exposure to market movements in relation  
to capital repayment.  Given the high credit quality of investments held, the risk of default  
in relation to interest or capital is very low.

With respect to receivables, customers cannot pay for Lotterywest products on credit. Lotterywest 
collects monies electronically from its retail network on a weekly basis and monitors the 
performance of retail outlets.   All new retail outlets are requested to provide a bank guarantee 
equivalent to one week’s takings.  Consequently there is no material default risk for receivables. 

There were no bank guarantees called upon during this financial year.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when Lotterywest is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.  
Lotterywest is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of its business. 
Lotterywest manages liquidity risk by limiting investment terms to have sufficient funds available 
to meet forecasted payment outcomes as and when they fall due. Longer term investments  
may also be committed or sold to meet any short term liquidity demands.

Market risk

Lotterywest does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price  
risks.  Lotterywest’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the whole 
investment portfolio and changes in interest rates which impact on investment income.   
The current outlook for interest rates is considered stable.  Lotterywest has no borrowings.  

The primary objective of Lotterywest’s investment portfolios are capital preservation whilst  
generating an appropriate return.  Investment in high quality products where all investments  
are held to maturity and all counterparties are investment grade provides low risk of capital loss.  
The current investment portfolios only contain term deposits, floating rate notes and floating  
rate deposits.  

(b) Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amount of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial 
 liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2018
$000

2017
$000

Financial assets
Cash 17,980 21,799 
Loan and receivables(i) 9,704 5,833 
Other financial assets held-to-maturity 234,938 223,189 
(i) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (statutory receivable).

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 203,539 182,803 

(c) Financial instrument disclosures

Credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk exposure

The following table details the exposure to liquidity risk and interest rate risk as at the end of the 
reporting period. Lotterywest`s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period 
is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown on the following table. The table is based 
on information provided from Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) to Lotterywest.

The contractual maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted principal 
and interest receivable or payable amounts. 

Lotterywest holds bank guarantees as collateral for its retailer debtors. 

There are no financial assets that are past due and therefore there is no further ageing analysis 
for the financial assets.

Lotterywest does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that 
would have otherwise resulted in them being past due or impaired.
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Maturity analysis of financial assets

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

Carrying 
amount

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

Fixed  
interest  

rate

Variable 
interest 

rate

Non- 
interest 
bearing

Nominal 
amount

Within     
1 year

1-3   
years

3-5  
years

More 
than 5 
years

2018 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 17,980 1.47  -   17,980   -   17,980 17,980  -    -    -   

Loan and receivables 9,704 -  -    -   9,704  9,704 9,704  -    -    -   

Other financial assets held to maturity 234,938 2.64 84,638 150,300  -   235,732 79,144 123,075 20,335 13,178 

262,622 84,638 168,280 9,704  263,416 106,828 123,075 20,335 13,178 

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

Carrying 
amount

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

Fixed 
interest  

rate

Variable 
interest 

rate

Non- 
interest 
bearing

Nominal 
amount

Within     
1 year

1-3   
years

3-5  
years

More 
than 5 
years

2017 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 21,799 1.56  -   21,799  -   21,799 21,798  -    -    -   

Loan and receivables 5,833 -  -    -   5,833 5,833 5,833  -    -    -   

Other financial assets held to maturity 223,189 2.74 50,889 172,300  -   223,776 48,143 131,794 43,839  -   

250,821 50,889 194,099 5,833 251,408 75,774 131,794 43,839  -   
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Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

Carrying 
amount

Weighted  
average 

interest rate

Fixed  
interest  

rate

Variable 
interest 

rate

Non- 
interest 
bearing

Total 
nominal 
amount

Within  
1 year

1-3  
years

3-5  
years

More 
than 5 
years

2018 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured  
at amortised cost 203,539  -    -    -   203,539 203,539 174,069  3,410 3,360 22,700 

203,539 203,539 203,539 174,069  3,410 3,360 22,700 

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

Carrying 
amount

Weighted  
average 

interest rate

Fixed  
interest  

rate

Variable  
interest 

rate

Non- 
interest 
bearing

Total  
nominal 
amount

Within        
1 year

1-3   
years

3-5  
years

More 
than 5 
years

2017 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 182,803  -    -    -   182,803 182,803 165,583 1,970 1,970 13,280 

182,803 182,803 182,803 165,583 1,970 1,970 13,280 
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Fair value

All financial assets and liabilities, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at 
amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the  
specific notes.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table summarises the interest rate sensitivity of Lotterywest’s financial assets and  
liabilities at the end of the reporting period. It assumes that any change in interest rates is held  
constant throughout the reporting period.  The sensitivity analysis provided is a movement of – 0.5% 
and 0.5%. (2017: -0.5% and 0.5%)

As at 30 June 2018 the cash rate was 1.5% (2017: 1.5%)                                                                                                                   

Carrying
amount

-0.5% 
Change

(loss)

+0.5% 
Change

profit
2018  $000 $000 $000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,980 (90) 90 
Other financial assets held to maturity 234,938 (1,175) 1,175 
Loan and receivables 9,704  -    -   

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised costs 203,539  -    -   
Total increase/(decrease) (1,265) 1,265 

Carrying
amount

-0.5% 
Change

(loss)

+0.5% 
Change

profit

2017  $000 $000 $000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 21,799 (109) 109 
Other financial assets held to maturity 223,189 (1,116) 1,116 
Loan and receivables 5,833  -    -   

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 182,803  -    -   
Total increase/(decrease) (1,225) 1,225 

 

Estimate of expected credit loss

Revised AASB 9, which comes into effect 1 July 2018, requires Lotterywest recognise a loss  
allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets and apply the adjustment to the value of 
investments held. Accordingly no adjustment has been recognised in this year’s financial statements.

WATC has determined the value of Lotterywest’s expected credit loss for 2018 based on the  
probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default using data from Bloomberg  
and Moody’s across the two portfolios as being $63,456.

8.2 Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position  
but are disclosed and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value.

Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

8.2.1 Contingent assets

Litigation in progress

An insurance claim against a supplier for faulty materials is currently in progress. The potential  
financial effect of the success of the claim cannot be reliably measured at this time.

8.2.2 Contingent liabilities

Lotterywest is not aware of any contingent liabilities at 30 June 2018.
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9. Other disclosures
This section includes additional material disclosures to comply with Australian Accounting  
Standards and Treasurer’s Instructions.

Notes
Equity 9.1
Future impact of Accounting Standards not yet operative 9.2
Assets and services received free of charge 9.3
Remuneration of auditors     9.4
Key management personnel 9.5
Related party transactions 9.6
Related and affiliated bodies 9.7
Events occurring after the end of the reporting period 9.8
Supplementary financial information 9.9

Explanatory statement 9.10

9.1 Equity

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in Lotterywest on behalf  
of the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of Lotterywest  
and comprises the following:

2018 
$000

2017 
$000

Asset revaluation reserve(a)

Balance at start of year 6,445 8,540 
Asset revaluation (decrements) / increments (973) (2,095)
Balance at the end of the period 5,472 6,445 

Retained earnings (b)

Balance at start of the year 66,593 80,278 
Loss for the period (4,872) (13,685)
Balance at the end of the period 61,721 66,593 

Total equity 67,193 73,038 

(a)  The asset revaluation reserve records increments/decrements in the fair value of land and buildings.   
Decrements are recognised in this reserve only to the extent that they were previously recognised  
as increments on the same class of asset.

(b) This represents the accumulated profits from previous years and this profit or (loss) in the current year.

9.2 Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative

Lotterywest cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically  
permitted by Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and 
Other Pronouncements or by an exemption from TI 1101. Where applicable, the Lotterywest  
plans to apply the following Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.   

AASB 9: Financial Instruments, and relevant amending standards

1 Jan 2018

AASB 9 includes requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets.  
It was further amended by AASB 2010-7 to reflect amendments to the accounting for financial 
liabilities. These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and 
measurement of financial assets compared with the requirements of AASB 139. 

Lotterywest does not expect a material financial impact when the Standard is first applied.

AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and relevant amending standards

1 Jan 2019

This Standard establishes the principles that an entity shall apply to report useful information 
to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue 
and cashflows arising from a contract with a customer. The mandatory application date of this 
Standard is currently 1 January 2019 after being amended by AASB 2016-7.

Lotterywest does not expect any material financial impact when the standard is first applied.

AASB 16: Leases 

1 Jan 2019

This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise 
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying 
asset is of low value.

Whilst the impact of AASB 16 has not yet been quantified, it is likely to materially impact Lottery-
west financial statements. Lotterywest currently has commitments for $19.92 million worth of 
non-cancellable property and operating leases which will mostly be recognised as additional 
assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position. Interest and amortisation expense will 
increase and rental expense will decrease.
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AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

AASB 2016-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –  
Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities

1 Jan 2019

These standards will defer income recognition in some circumstances for NFP entities,  
particularly where there is a performance obligation or any other liability. In addition, certain  
components in an arrangement, such as donations, may be separated from other types of  
income and recognised immediately. The Standard also expands the circumstances in which  
NFP entities are required to recognise income for goods and services received for consideration 
that is significantly less than the fair value of the asset principally to enable the entity to further  
its objectives (discounted goods and services), including for example, peppercorn leases.

Lotterywest does not expect a material financial impact when the Standard is first applied.

AASB 1059: Service Concession Arrangements – Grantors

1 Jan 2019

This Standard addresses the accounting for a service concession arrangement (a type  
of public private partnership) by a grantor that is a public sector agency by prescribing the  
accounting for the arrangement from the grantor’s perspective. Timing and measurement  
for the recognition of a specific asset class occurs on commencement of the arrangement  
and the accounting for associated liabilities is determined by whether the grantee is paid  
by the grantor or users of the public service provided.

Lotterywest has not yet determined the potential impact of the Standard.

9.3 Assets and services received free of charge 
2018
$000

2017
$000

Legal services provided by the State Solicitor’s Office 45 30

Assets and resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that Lotterywest would  
otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets  
or serivces where they can be reliaby measured. A corresponding expense is recognised  
for services received.  Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

Assets and services received from other State Government agencies are disclosed separately  
under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

9.4 Remuneration of auditors

The total fees to the Auditor General for statutory audits are as follows:

2018
$000

2017
$000

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and   
performance indicators

127 126

9.5 Compensation of key management personnel

The Commission has determined that Key Management Personnel include State Government 
Ministers, our Minister, the WA Premier (current), Lotterywest’s Board members, CEO and Senior 
Executive Services (SES) designated Senior Officers. However, the Commission is not obligated to 
compensate Ministers and therefore disclosures in relation to Ministers’ compensation may be 
found in the Annual Report on State Finances.

Compensation of members of the accountable authority 

       2018 
No.

      2017
No.Compensation band ($)

10,001  -  20,000 4 -
30,001  -  40,000 3 5
50,001  -  60,000 - -
60,001  -  70,000 1 1

8 6

2018
$000

2017
$000

Short term employee benefits 242 239
Post employment benefits - -
Other long term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -

Total compensation of members of the accountable authority 242 239
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Compensation of senior officers 

         2018
No.

      2017 
NoCompensation band ($)

160,001  -  170,000 - 1
170,001  -  180,000 1  -   
190,001  -  200,000 1 -
200,001  -  210,000 1 2
210,001  -  220,000 2 3
300,001  -  310,000(a) 1  -   
320,001  -  330,000 1 -
710,001  -  720,000(a) - 1

7 7
(a) Includes termination benefits.

2018
$000

2017
$000

Short term employee benefits 1,400 1,546 
Post employment benefits - -
Other long term benefits 33 47 
Termination benefits 195 339 
Total compensation of senior officers 1,628 1,932

9.6 Related party transactions

Lotterywest is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Western Australia. In conducting 
its activities, Lotterywest is required to pay various taxes and levies based on the standard terms 
and condition that apply to all tax and levy payers to the State and entities related to the State.

Related parties of Lotterywest include:

•  All Ministers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled entities;

•  All senior officers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled entities;

•   Other departments and public sector entities, including related bodies included in the whole 
of government consolidated financial statement;

•   Associates and joint ventures, that are included in the whole of government consolidated 
financial statement; and

•  The Government Employee Superannuation Board (GESB).

Significant transactions with government related entities:

•  Services received free of charge (Note 9.3);

•   Vehicle lease rental payments to the Department of Finance during the year 30 June 2018  
was $0.19 million;

•  Lease payments to the Department of Finance (Note 6.3);

•  Insurance payments to RiskCover fund during the year 30 June 2018 was $0.34 million;

•  Grants provided to Hospital, Sports, and Arts (Note 4.2);

•  Grants from State Government (Note 3.5); and

•  Remuneration for services provided by the Auditor General (Note 9.4).

Material transactions with other related parties

•  Superannuation payment to GESB during the year 30 June 2018 was $3.56 million.

Outside of general citizen type transactions, there were no material related party transactions 
with Key Management Personnel or their close family members or their controlled or jointly 
controlled entities for the year ended to 30 June 2018.
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9.7 Related and affiliated bodies

Section 26 (1) of the Act requires details of all grants recipients to be listed separately,  
including grants provided to any affiliated bodies. There were no related and/or affiliated  
bodies requiring disclosure for the year. A full list of grants approved is disclosed in the  
Annual Report.

9.8 Events occurring after the end of the reporting period

There has been no event subsequent to the end of the reporting period which would  
have a material effect on Lotterywest’s financial statements at 30 June 2018.

9.9 Supplementary financial information

Write-offs
2018
$000

2017
$000

Play online transactions written-off 4 119
Portable attractive assets 11 4

15 123

9.10 Explanatory statement

The following tables provide details of significant variations between actual revenues  
and expenditures for the financial year compared with the corresponding items for  
the preceding year and the corresponding items in the budget.

Significant variations are considered to be those where the amount is deemed as being  
in excess of 5% and $1.5 million.

Significant variations 
Between actual and estimates (original budget) of revenues and expenditures for 2018

2018 Actual 
$000

2018 Budget 
$000

Variance 
$000

REVENUE
Sales 854,564 904,000 (49,436) (a)

Less: Cost of sales
Prizes 482,507 506,558 (24,051)
Printing costs 3,161 4,202 (1,041)
Retailers’ commission 63,222 71,416 (8,194)
Goods and Services Tax 33,622 36,585 (2,963)
Total Cost of sales 582,512 618,761 (36,249) (b)

Trading profit 272,052 285,239 (13,187)

OTHER REVENUE
Interest 8,095 7,750 345 
Other 9,650 13,494 (3,844) (c)
Total other revenue 17,745 21,244 (3,499)

GAINS
Gains on disposal of  
non-current assets

(119) - (119)

Other gains 1,731 - 1,731 (d)
Total gains 1,612 - 1,612 

EXPENSES
Lotteries operations 61,733 64,437 (2,704)
Grants and community  
development operations

12,385 12,911 (526)

Total expenses 74,118 77,348 (3,230) (e)
Profit from operating activities 217,291 229,135 (11,844)

Total returns to beneficiaries
Direct grants (net of grants not taken up) 99,994 112,700 (12,706)
State Pool Account 124,633 133,079 (8,446)
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 31,158 33,268 (2,110)

             Total returns to beneficiaries 255,785 279,047 (23,262) (f)

GST reimbursement for gaming margin 33,622 36,585 (2,963) (g)
Net profit / (loss) (4,872) (13,327) 8,455 
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(a) Sales

Sales revenue was $49.4 million (5%) lower than originally budgeted mainly due to overly  
ambitious expected industry growth rates not eventuating, subdued economic conditions,  
the effect of new competitors in the gaming market and lower than expected high level  
jackpot events.

(b) Cost of sales

Prize allocation, printing, commissions, and Goods and Services Tax are lower as they are  
directly linked to reduced sales. The proportionate increase in on-line sales in the product  
mix also contributed to lower commission payments.

(c) Other revenue

Other revenue decreased $3.8 million due to lower Forfeited Prizes and lower Service fees.  
The increase in registered membership reduces Forfeited Prizes because of automated 
electronic returns on unclaimed Play Online prizes and the ability to follow up with registered 
members who have not yet claimed their prizes.

(d) Gains

Other gains recognised future development credits on a technology contract.

(e) Total expenses from lottery activities

Total expenses were below budget mainly due to underspend in advertising and  
services and contracts, particularly relating to shopfit contributions. 

(f) Total returns to beneficiaries

Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to  
section 22 of the Act and is directly linked to the level of sales recorded. 

Direct Grants are distributed according to sections 19 and 24 of the Act and were 11% lower  
due to lower than estimated sales resulting in a reduction of the direct grant program to  
a more sustainable level.

(g) GST reimbursement for gaming margin

GST reimbursement for gaming margin is reimbursed based on the gaming margin, which  
is directly linked to sales. The lower sales resulted in a decrease in GST Reimbursement.

Significant variations 
Actual revenues and expenditures for 2018 and 2017

2018 Actual 
$000

2017 Actual 
$000

Variance 
$000

REVENUE
Sales 854,564 827,395 27,169 (a)

Less: Cost of sales
Prizes 482,507 465,936 16,571 
Printing costs 3,161 2,866 295 
Retailers’ commission 63,222 62,492 730 
Goods and Services Tax 33,622 33,009 613 
Total Cost of sales 582,512 564,303 18,209 (b)

Trading profit 272,052 263,092 8,960 

OTHER REVENUE
Interest 8,095 8,358 (263)
Forfeited prizes 5,371 11,635 (6,264) (c)
Retailer fees 4,203 4,447 (244)
Player registration service fee 11 64 (53)
Other 65 280 (215)
Total other revenue from lottery activities 17,745 24,784 (7,039)

GAINS
Gains on disposal of non-current assets (119) - (119)
Other gains 1,731 - 1,731 (d)
Total gains 1,612 - 1,612 

EXPENSES
Lotteries operations 61,733 61,162 571 
Grants and community development operations 12,385 12,255 130 
Total expenses from lottery activities 74,118 73,417 701 

Profit from operating activities 217,291 214,459 2,832 

Total returns to beneficiaries
Direct grants (net of grants not taken up) 99,994 109,987 (9,993)
State Pool Account 124,633 120,934 3,699 
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 31,158 30,232 926 

        Total returns to beneficiaries 255,785 261,153 (5,368) (e)
GST reimbursement for gaming margin 33,622 33,009 613 

Net loss (4,872) (13,685) 8,813 
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(a) Sales

Sales revenue increased by $27.2 million (3%) due to improved jackpot conditions for  
OZ Lotto and Powerball, and increased sales for Scratch’n’Win.

(b) Cost of sales

Cost of Sales are higher as they are directly linked to increased sales. 

(c) Forfeited prizes

Under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended), players have 12 months to claim  
a lottery prize. If the prize is not claimed within that period, the prize is forfeited. The increase  
in registered membership contributed to the reduction of forfeited prizes, as winning prizes  
are automatically paid to online players and the ability to follow up with registered members 
who have not yet claimed their prize.

(d) Gains

Other gains recognised future development credits on a technology contract.

(e) Total returns to beneficiaries

Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to  
section 22 of the Act and is directly linked to the increased level of sales. 

Direct Grants are distributed according to sections 19 and 24 of the Act. There was a  
reduction in the direct grant program to increase funding for retailer shopfits, while  
maintaining the direct grant program at a sustainable level.

Operating budget

In accordance with the Treasurer’s Instruction 953, this statement shows the 2019 Budget 
estimate for the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This statement is not subject to audit. 

2019 Budget 
$000

2018 Actual 
$000

Variance 
$000

REVENUE
Sales 873,535 854,564 18,971 (a)

Less: Cost of sales
Prizes 491,919 482,507 9,412 
Printing costs 3,687 3,161 526 
Retailers’ commission 66,572 63,222 3,350 
Goods and Services Tax 34,850 33,622 1,228 
Total cost of sales 597,028 582,512 14,516 

Trading profit 276,507 272,052 4,455 

OTHER REVENUE
Interest 7,750 8,095 (345)
Forfeited prizes 7,903 5,371 2,532 
Retailer fees 4,717 4,203 514 
Player registration service fee - 11 (11)
Other 262 65 197 
Total revenues from lottery activities 20,632 17,745 2,887 

GAINS
Gains on disposal of non-current assets - (119) 119 
Other gains - 1,731 (1,731)
Total gains - 1,612 (1,612)

EXPENSES
Lotteries operations 67,998 61,733 6,265 
Grants and community development operations 12,247 12,385 (138)
Total expenses from lottery activities 80,245 74,118 6,127 (b)

Profit from operating activities 216,894 217,291 (397)

Total returns to beneficiaries
Direct grants (net of grants not taken up) 100,000 99,994 6
State Pool Account 127,678 124,633 3,045 
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 31,918 31,158 760 

Total returns to beneficiaries 259,596 255,785 3,811 (c)

GST reimbursement for gaming margin 34,850 33,622 1,228 

Net loss (7,852) (4,872) (2,980) (d)
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NOTES TO THE BUDGET

Lotterywest’s 2018-19 Budget meets the operational and financial objectives, as well as the long 
term strategies documented in Lotterywest’s Strategic Development Plan.  

(a) The sales budget of $873.5M represents an increase of 2.2% on actual sales from 2017-18. 

(b)  Lotterywest’s operational expense budget of $80.2m represents an increase of $6.0M (8%) 
from 2017-18 actual expenses with the main variance being:

•  Increase in advertising of $2.6M

•  Increase in retail distribution (namely shopfit contributions) of $4.9M

•  Increase in service and contracts of $1.9M

•  Increase in IT systems of $0.9M

•  Decrease in employee benefits of $3.7M

•  Decrease in depreciation and amortisation of $0.6M

(c)  The community funding budget for 2018-19 of $259.6 million includes funding to Hospitals  
of $127.7M, $15.6M each to Sport and Arts and a direct grants program of $100.0M reflecting 
a 1.5% increase on the 2017-18 actual.

(d)  Lotterywest has planned for an operating deficit of $7.9M in 2018-19 to be funded from  
existing equity.
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Grants approved to  
the WA community
Date range: 01.07.2017 - 30.06.2018
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Grantee Customer  Granted Amount 

55 Central Inc  $37,722 

Abmusic (Aboriginal Corporation)  $11,300 

Abmusic (Aboriginal Corporation)  $9,450 

Adopt Change Limited  $14,699 

Agencies for South West Accommodation Inc.  $27,565 

Albany Community Legal Centre Incorporated  $16,970 

Albany MenShed (Inc)  $20,000 

Albany Mountain Bike Club Inc  $15,000 

Albany Youth Support Association Incorporated  $76,594 

Alternatives to Violence Project W.A. Incorporated  $10,000 

Angelhands Inc.  $44,587 

Anglicare WA Inc.  $240,000 

Anglicare WA Inc.  $573,550 

Ardross Primary School - River Rangers  $7,450 

Armadale Indoor Bowling Club  $5,000 

Armadale State Emergency Service Unit (Inc)  $4,896 

Arthritis Foundation of W.A. Incorporated  $24,682 

Artrage Inc  $1,870,000 

Artrinsic Inc.  $123,527 

Arts and Culture Goldfields Association Inc  $19,700 

Arts Margaret River Incorporated  $62,500 

Arts Margaret River Incorporated  $27,000 

Ashlar Glen Association (Inc)  $1,637 

Assisting Your Life to Achieve (AYLA) Inc  $70,000 

Association for Services to Torture and Trauma Survivors (ASeTTS) Inc.  $26,835 

Asthma Foundation of Western Australia Incorporated  $90,955 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Augusta River Festival (Inc)  $15,000 

Aurora Education Foundation Limited  $521,669 

Australian Arab Association Incorporated  $11,000 

Australian Army Cadets Association (W.A) Inc  $99,671 

Autism West Support Incorporated  $19,800 

Balai Bahasa Indonesia Perth Incorporated  $2,500 

Bangladesh Australia Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $15,000 

Banjima Native Title Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC  $67,914 

Baptist Union of Western Australia - Lesmurdie Baptist Church  $5,034 

Baptistcare Incorporated  $49,665 

Barking Gecko Theatre Company Ltd.  $46,640 

Batavia Coast Maritime Heritage Assoc Inc  $15,000 

Beananging Kwuurt Institute  $53,500 

Beckenham Over 55’s Club Incorporated  $4,012 

Bega Garnbirringu Health Services Incorporated  $900,000 

Belswan Workshop Group  $5,500 

Bengali Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $4,800 

Bengali Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $4,881 

Beverley Mens Shed Incorporated  $22,354 

Bicycling Western Australia Inc  $20,000 

Big Pram Walk  $9,500 

Bindoon and Districts Agricultural Society Inc  $15,000 

Bindoon and Districts Agricultural Society Inc  $11,000 

Black Swan State Theatre Company Ltd  $188,783 

Boab Festival at Derby  $21,748 

Boddington Community Resource Centre Inc  $14,370 
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Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Boer War Memorial Society of WA Inc  $1,960 

Bonsai Society of Western Australia Incorporated  $4,550 

Boyup Brook Working Horse Club Incorporated  $2,900 

Brazilian Association of WA Inc.  $10,000 

Breakaway Aboriginal Corporation  $29,550 

Bremer Bay Art and Craft Association Incorporated  $12,727 

Bridgetown Camera Club Inc  $2,725 

Bridgetown Family and Community Centre Incorporated  $17,850 

Brookhampton Bellringers Inc  $17,320 

Broome Aboriginal Media Association (Aboriginal Corporation)  $450,000 

Broome Aboriginal Media Association (Aboriginal Corporation)  $25,000 

Broome Community Information Resource Centre and Learning Exchange  $23,000 

Broome Filipino Volunteers Association  $10,000 

Broome Lotteries House Incorporated  $57,966 

Broome Youth and Families Hub Incorporated  $17,739 

Bruce Rock Community Resource Centre (Inc)  $1,432 

Bruce Rock Community Resource Centre (Inc)  $12,115 

Buddha’s Light International Association Western Australia Incorporated  $5,000 

Bunbury Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Coodanup  $300,000 

Bunbury Diocesan Trustees - St Georges Community Care Dunsborough  $14,380 

Bunbury Dolphin Discovery Incorporated  $600,431 

Bunbury Multicultural Group Incorporated  $20,000 

Bunbury Musical Comedy Group  $9,105 

Bunbury Regional Theatre Incorporated  $114,000 

Bunbury Regional Theatre Incorporated  $111,000 

Busselton Allsports Inc.  $20,000 

Busselton Naturalists’ Club (Inc.)  $1,040 

Butterly Cottages Association Inc  $3,000 

Canoe and Cray Carnival Inc  $10,240 

Capel Men’s Shed Inc  $8,943 

Carers Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $40,000 

Carewest Association of Community Based Children’s Services (WA) Inc.  $25,000 

Carey Baptist Church Inc.  $10,323 

Carnarvon Family Support Service Incorporated  $70,000 

Carnarvon Lotteries House Incorporated  $46,200 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Catch Music Inc  $70,000 

Celebrate Western Australia (Inc)  $2,906,639 

Centacare Kimberley Association Inc  $60,500 

Centre for Asylum Seekers, Refugees and Detainees Inc  $35,000 

Centre for Pregnancy, Childbirth Education and Early Parenting Services Inc  $20,500 

Centrecare Incorporated  $80,430 

Centrecare Incorporated - Djooraminda Service  $10,626 

Centrepoint Church Incorporated  $20,000 

Chamber of Arts and Culture WA Incorporated  $155,000 

Cheeditha Group Aboriginal Corporation  $33,492 

Children’s Hospice Association (Inc)  $25,000 

Children’s Leukaemia and Cancer Research Foundation Inc  $10,000 

Chorus Australia Limited  $506,580 

Chung Wah Association  $20,000 

Church of Christ Kalgoorlie  $3,150 

Churchlands Senior High School Surf Life Saving Cadets  $6,363 

City of Albany  $55,000 

City of Albany  $300,000 

City of Albany - Albany Lotteries House  $3,200 

City of Albany Band Incorporated  $13,130 

City of Armadale  $12,669 

City of Armadale  $35,000 

City of Bayswater  $20,000 

City of Bayswater  $87,026 

City of Belmont  $20,000 

City of Bunbury  $30,000 

City of Bunbury  $1,000,000 

City of Busselton  $250,000 

City of Canning  $40,000 

City of Cockburn  $50,000 

City of Fremantle  $45,550 

City of Gosnells  $1,300,000 

City of Gosnells  $105,000 

City of Greater Geraldton  $66,000 

City of Greater Geraldton  $23,921 
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Grantee Customer Granted Amount

City of Kalamunda  $180,000 

City of Kalamunda  $2,500,000 

City of Kalamunda  $20,000 

City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder  $20,000 

City of Karratha  $50,000 

City of Karratha  $1,500,000 

City of Kwinana  $20,000 

City of Kwinana  $38,000 

City of Mandurah  $20,000 

City of Melville  $15,000 

City of Melville  $15,000 

City of Nedlands  $20,000 

City of Perth  $435,000 

City of Rockingham  $20,000 

City of South Perth  $20,000 

City of Stirling  $30,000 

City of Stirling - Stirling Womens Centre  $22,000 

City of Swan  $20,000 

City of Swan  $20,000 

City of Wanneroo  $200,000 

City of Wanneroo  $30,000 

Clontarf Foundation  $16,300 

Coastal Kids Care Incorporated  $13,825 

Coastal Kids Care Incorporated  $10,455 

Cockburn Toy Library Incorporated  $5,600 

Cockburn Volunteer Sea Search And Rescue Group  $40,852 

Collie Gallery Group Inc  $3,000 

Community Arts Network Western Australia Ltd  $900,000 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Community Focus National Limited  $14,895 

Community Home Care Incorporated  $50,000 

Community Housing Limited  $324,000 

Community Living Association Inc  $13,495 

Community Living Association Inc  $4,539 

Community Vision Incorporated.  $272,802 

Compassionate Friends of Western Australia Inc  $6,000 

Connect Victoria Park Incorporated  $189,525 

ConnectGroups - Support Groups Association WA Inc  $24,804 

ConnectGroups - Support Groups Association WA Inc  $91,776 

ConnectGroups - Support Groups Association WA Inc  $490,550 

Consular Corps of Western Australia Inc  $20,000 

Consumers of Mental Health WA (Inc).  $239,450 

Cook Islands Community WA Incorporated  $14,607 

Coorow Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $66,580 

Coral Bay Progress Association (Inc)  $41,000 

Cornerstone Church Inc  $10,000 

Council of Christians and Jews, Western Australia Incorporated  $1,400 

Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Incorporated  $77,000 

Country Arts (WA) Inc  $1,413,839 

Country Music Club of Boyup Brook, WA Incorporated  $20,000 

Country Women’s Association of Western Australia  $8,976 

Cowaramup Mens Shed Inc  $12,435 

Cranbrook Tourist and Business Promotion Group  $6,660 

Crewsaders Dragons Abreast Bunbury Inc  $8,095 

Crime Stoppers Western Australia Limited  $33,815 

Crossways Community Services Inc  $78,000 

Cue Community Resource Centre Inc.  $8,119 
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Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Curtin University Student Guild  $10,000 

Cymbidium Orchid Club of Western Australia Inc.  $5,100 

Cyril Jackson Senior Campus Support Centre  $6,560 

Cystic Fibrosis Western Australia (Inc)  $45,516 

DADAA Limited  $1,362,083 

Dalwallinu Clubhouse Early Learning Centre Inc  $6,385 

Dalwallinu Toy Library Incorporated  $1,885 

Dardanup Bull and Barrel Festival Incorporated  $14,301 

Dardanup Bull and Barrel Festival Incorporated  $14,861 

Darlington Arts Festival Association Inc  $24,000 

Deafness Council Western Australia Incorporated  $14,354 

Denmark Arts Council  $40,000 

Denmark Machinery Restoration Group Inc  $13,940 

Desert Blue Connect Inc.  $12,050 

Diabetes WA Ltd.  $33,799 

Dianella Districts Combined Probus Club Inc  $1,943 

Dianella Secondary College Education Support Centre - Bush Ranger Cadets  $15,000 

Directions Disability Support Services Inc  $89,614 

Dongara Community Resource Centre Inc.  $12,650 

Dongara Denison Community Festival Association Incorporated  $15,000 

Donnybrook Apple Festival Inc.  $16,000 

Doors Wide Open Inc.  $27,228 

Dumbleyung Events Committee Inc  $8,240 

Duncraig Senior High School Bush Rangers WA Cadets  $15,000 

Dunsborough and Districts Progress Association Incorporated  $14,000 

Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $92,926 

Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $167,000 

Eastern Region Domestic Violence Services Network Inc  $28,750 

Eaton Australind Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service  $3,977 

Edmund Rice Centre, Mirrabooka Inc.  $12,291 

El Shaddai Kwinana Christian Fellowship Inc  $18,000 

Ellenbrook Community Collective Incorporated  $15,000 

Emmaus Community Incorporated  $207,638 

EON Benevolent Fund Inc.  $60,682 

Equity Benevolent Guild of WA (Incorporated)  $50,000 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Escare Incorporated  $25,231 

Esperance Care Services Inc.  $58,000 

Esperance Community Arts (Inc)  $52,673 

Esperance Men In Sheds Incorporated  $25,900 

Esperance Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service  $14,912 

Ethnic Disability Advocacy Centre Inc  $15,354 

Exmouth Community Garden Inc.  $11,585 

Exmouth Community Support Group Inc.  $40,000 

Exmouth Cultural Arts Centre Inc  $3,595 

Fashion Council WA Limited  $66,000 

Federation of Western Australian Bushwalkers Incorporated  $11,000 

Federation of Western Australian Police and Community Youth Centres (Inc)  $122,725 

Fenians, Fremantle and Freedom Incorporated  $30,979 

Festival of Busselton Incorporated  $14,000 

Financial Counsellors Association of Western Australia  $45,365 

First Friends Playgroup Inc.  $11,822 

Fishers’ With Disabilities Association Incorporated  $34,850 

Fitzgerald Coast Tourism Association (INC)  $7,434 

Foodbank of Western Australia Incorporated  $23,000 

Foothills Information and Referral Service Incorporated  $46,000 

FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc  $77,000 

FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc  $80,000 

Foundation Housing Ltd  $75,000 

Fremantle Bridge Club Inc.  $3,702 

Friends of Battye Library Incorporated  $94,500 

Friends of Kings Park (Inc.)  $100,000 

Friends of Pingelly Railway Station Inc  $9,956 

Friends of the Fitzgerald River National Park (Inc.)  $25,740 

Garnduwa Amboorny Wirnan Aboriginal Corporation  $171,250 

Gascoyne in May Inc  $65,000 

Gay and Lesbian Singers of Western Australia Incorporated  $3,909 

Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Transgender and Intersex Retirement Association Rights in Ageing (GRAI) Incorporated  $15,000 

Geographe Cycle Club Inc  $2,000 

Geraldton Cultural Trust  $105,150 

Geraldton Greenough Sunshine Festival (Inc.)  $15,000 
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Gibson Bush Fire Brigade  $11,818 

Gingin District Community Resource Centre Inc  $9,220 

Girls From Oz Ltd.  $49,980 

Glass Jar Australia Limited  $116,256 

Global Care Group (GCG) Incorporated  $35,000 

Glyde-In Community Learning Centre Incorporated  $63,649 

Gnowangerup Heritage Group (Inc.)  $4,000 

Goldfields Individual and Family Support Association Incorporated  $139,959 

Goldfields Land and Sea Council Aboriginal Corporation  $16,490 

Goldfields Rehabilitation Services Inc  $83,768 

Goldfields Womens Refuge Association  $25,000 

Gosnells Community Legal Centre (Inc)  $80,000 

Grace Christian School Emergency Services Cadets Unit  $11,636 

Grand Lodge of WA of Antient Free and Accepted Masons Incorporated - Morawa Masonic Lodge No 158 W.A.C.  $11,137 

Graylands Hospital Volunteer Service Inc.  $16,500 

Green Skills Inc.  $20,000 

Greener Pastures Sanctuary Inc  $50,534 

Grove Park Seniors Golf Club (Inc)  $15,000 

Guildford Association Incorporated  $2,683 

Gulgagulganeng Aboriginal Corporation  $2,627 

Haemophilia Foundation Australia Inc.  $13,040 

Harvest Lakes Residents’ Association Incorporated  $9,722 

Harvey Mainstreet (Inc.)  $20,000 

Headwest (Brain Injury Association of WA Inc.)  $17,000 

HeartKids Limited  $30,000 

Hedland Toy Library Inc  $2,358 

Hedland Womens Refuge Inc  $10,000 

Helping Out People Everywhere Incorporated  $64,000 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Hensman Street Pre-School Group  $22,000 

Heritage Perth Inc  $50,000 

Heritage Perth Inc  $30,000 

Hillarys Community Kindergarten Incorporated  $8,000 

Hills Outside School Care Association Incorporated  $48,938 

Hilton Harvest Community Garden Incorporated  $6,660 

Hindi Samaj of Western Australia Incorporated  $6,933 

Historical Society of Cockburn  $15,000 

Holistic Health Practitioner Network Incorporated  $2,000 

Holyoake Australian Institute for Alcohol and Drug Addiction Resolutions Inc.  $1,800,000 

Hopetoun Progress Association (Inc)  $10,500 

Hungarian Association of WA Inc  $84,961 

Huntington’s WA (Inc)  $10,500 

Husky and Malamute Rescue Inc  $1,500 

IBN Corporation Pty Ltd  $50,000 

ICEA Ltd  $20,000 

In Town Centre Incorporated  $19,400 

Inclusion Solutions Limited  $37,429 

Independent Living Centre of Western Australia Inc.  $2,674,838 

Indian Society of Western Australia  $20,000 

Indigenous Remote Communications Association Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders Corporation  $60,469 

Injury Control Council of Western Australia (Inc)  $70,098 

Iranian Association Inc  $10,100 

Ishar Multicultural Women’s Health Centre Inc.  $35,000 

Ishar Multicultural Women’s Health Centre Inc.  $57,000 

Japan Festival Inc.  $15,000 

Jazz by the Bay Association Incorporated  $30,000 

Jewish Care WA (Inc)  $20,000 
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Jewish Historical and Genealogical Society of Western Australia Inc.  $15,000 

John Septimus Roe Anglican Community School Bush Ranger Cadets  $6,109 

Joondalup Christmas Lunch  $14,099 

Joongari House/Wyndham Family Support Incorporated  $6,500 

Jurien Bay Community Men’s Shed Inc  $8,139 

K9 Rescue Group (Inc.)  $13,865 

Kalamunda and Districts Agricultural Society Incorporated  $10,000 

Kalbarri Mens Shed Inc  $11,763 

Kalgoorlie-Boulder Community Fair Society  $20,000 

Kalgoorlie-Boulder Lotteries House Association Inc.  $9,770 

Kalgoorlie-Boulder Urban Landcare Group (Inc.)  $40,715 

Kalyuku Ninti - Puntuku Ngurra Limited  $400,000 

Kapinara Primary School Parents and Citizens’ Association Incorporated  $4,063 

Katanning Regional Business Association Incorporated  $15,687 

Katanning Senior High School Bush Ranger Cadets  $13,068 

Katharine Susannah Prichard Foundation Inc.  $7,272 

Kelmscott-Pinjarra 10th Light Horse Memorial Troop Inc.  $5,893 

Kerala Cultural Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $9,600 

Kerala Hindu Samajam Perth Inc  $9,309 

Kids’ Camps Inc.  $177,653 

Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $100,000 

Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $69,200 

Kimberley Action Sports Incorporated  $3,700 

Kimberley Group Training (INC)  $10,420 

Kingsley Community Carols Festival  $11,400 

Kingsway Christian College Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $8,000 

Kinship Connections Aboriginal Corporation  $154,500 

Kira Incorporated  $118,303 

Kwinana Early Years Services Incorporated  $28,047 

Lake Grace Community Resource Centre Inc.  $1,500 

Lake Joondalup Baptist College Inc - Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $3,644 

Lattitude Social Club  $5,543 

Leading Age Services Australia Limited  $20,000 

Leading Youth Forward Incorporated  $44,437 

Leederville Connect Inc  $28,000 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Leeming Spartan Centenary Association Incorporated  $25,200 

Legacy Fund of Fremantle Incorporated  $13,175 

Leslie Street Sport and Social Centre For Over 50’s Incorporated  $18,880 

Leukaemia Foundation of Australia Limited  $91,320 

Leukaemia Foundation of Australia Limited  $5,000 

Liddelow Homestead Arts and Crafts Club Incorporated  $7,904 

Lifting Horizons Limited  $8,246 

Lions Club of Katanning  $5,000 

Literature Centre Inc.  $20,330 

Local Arts and Community Events Inc  $9,500 

Local Drug Action Groups Incorporated - Dongara  $5,000 

Lockyer Action Network  $2,147 

Lucy Saw Centre Association  $24,835 

Madora Bay Community Association (Inc.)  $2,500 

Malayali Association of Perth Incorporated  $7,500 

Mandurah City Choral Society Inc.  $3,400 

Mandurah Concert Band Inc.  $6,217 

Mandurah Family History Society Incorporated  $2,000 

Mandurah Gardens Estate Social Club (Inc)  $10,411 

Mandurah Performing Arts Incorporated  $336,000 

Mandurah Volunteer Marine Rescue Group (Incorporated)  $13,932 

Manjimup Cherry Harmony Festival Inc  $18,600 

Manjimup Cherry Harmony Festival Inc  $18,000 

Margaret River Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $233,306 

Margaret River Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $8,000 

Marnin Bowa Dumbara Aboriginal Corporation - Derby Family Healing Centre  $49,712 

Marnja Jarndu Womens Refuge Incorporated.  $22,000 

Maroo Wildlife Refuge Inc  $13,916 

Marra Worra Worra Aboriginal Corporation  $90,000 

MATES in Construction WA Limited  $55,290 

Meerilinga Young Children’s Foundation Inc  $54,490 

Meerilinga Young Children’s Foundation Inc  $95,000 

Menora Playgroup  $5,748 

Men’s Sheds of WA Inc.  $21,000 

Menshed, Geraldton Incorporated  $3,795 
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Menzies Aboriginal Corporation  $59,500 

Merredin and Districts Childcare and Play School Association Inc.  $3,238 

Merredin Museum & Historical Society Inc  $1,280 

Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc.  $138,838 

Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc.  $41,000 

Mid West Community Living Association Inc  $12,860 

Middleton Beach Group Inc  $3,234 

Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc.  $45,000 

Midland Women’s Health Care Place Incorporated  $24,459 

Midway Community Care  $7,500 

Midwest Waitangi Committee Inc.  $7,000 

Millennium Kids Inc.  $38,000 

Mission Australia  $65,541 

Montessori Playgroup Kingsley Inc.  $7,651 

Moorditch Gurlongga Association  $30,000 

Morangup Playgroup  $1,844 

Mount Helena Residents and Ratepayers Progress Association Incorporated  $11,525 

Mount Lawley Neighbourhood Toy Library Inc  $10,128 

Mowanjum Artists Spirit Of The Wandjina Aboriginal Corporation  $345,000 

Mt Hawthorn Business and Community Group Inc  $25,000 

Mt Marshall & Districts Agricultural Society (Inc.)  $8,516 

Mullewa District Agricultural Society  $6,483 

Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Incorporated  $211,939 

Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Incorporated  $126,563 

Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $35,710 

Mundarda Child Care Centre Inc  $65,654 

Mundaring in Transition Incorporated  $8,129 

Murdoch University  $230,000 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $26,352 

N Class Destroyers Association Western Australian Branch (Inc)  $3,025 

NAIDOC Perth Incorporated  $30,000 

Nannup Garden Village Inc  $16,000 

Nannup Music Club Incorporated  $55,000 

Nardine Wimmins Refuge  $40,000 

Narrogin Agricultural Society Incorporated  $15,000 

National Disability Services Limited - National Disability Services Western Australia  $70,970 

National Disability Services Limited - National Disability Services Western Australia  $63,062 

National Seniors Australia Floreat And Districts Branch Inc.  $2,710 

National Trust of Australia (W.A.)  $2,824,480 

National Trust of Australia (WA) - Ellensbrook Interpretation Project  $250,800 

Nature Conservancy Limited as Trustee for Nature Conservancy Australia Trust  $1,261,098 

Nature Play WA Inc.  $15,000 

Neami Limited  $32,232 

Nepali Association of Western Australia (NAWA) Incorporated  $4,783 

Newman Women’s Shelter Inc.  $15,000 

Newton Moore Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets  $7,000 

Ngala Community Services  $52,500 

Ngalla Maya Aboriginal Corporation  $13,761 

Ngarlawangga Aboriginal Corporation  $54,894 

Nine Mile Aboriginal Corporation  $23,900 

Nintirri Centre (Incorporated)  $30,000 

No Limits Perth Inc  $54,000 

Nornalup Residents & Ratepayers Association Incorporated  $5,000 

Norseman Gold Fever Festival Inc  $15,000 

North Coastal Children’s Community Choir Inc  $2,117 

North Midlands Project Incorporated  $36,527 
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North Perth Business and Community Association Inc.  $10,000 

North Perth Community Garden Inc.  $4,050 

Northam Men’s Shed Inc.  $19,540 

Northam Theatre Group (Inc.)  $15,000 

Northampton District Agricultural Society Incorporated  $10,000 

Northampton Motors & Machinery Restoration Group Inc  $3,517 

Northcliffe Pioneer Museum Incorporated  $1,900 

Northern Compassion Inc.  $13,200 

Northern Suburbs Model Railway Group Inc  $9,243 

Northside Highlanders Pipe Band Inc.  $11,500 

Novacare Residents’ Association Incorporated  $8,000 

Nuhra Life Enrichment Centre Incorporated  $9,778 

Ocean Heroes Limited  $37,200 

One Big Voice Festival Inc  $18,165 

One Tree Community Services Inc  $1,298,433 

Orana House (Inc)  $15,000 

Ord Valley Events Inc  $20,000 

Organisation of African Community of Western Australia Inc  $15,000 

Outcare (Incorporated)  $7,225 

Oyster Harbour Catchment Group Incorporated  $9,116 

Palliative Care W.A. Incorporated  $40,707 

Palmerston Association Incorporated  $628,724 

Parents’ and Friends’ Federation of Western Australia (Inc)  $43,780 

Parents of Children with Special Needs Inc.  $32,832 

Parish of Sts Apostles Peter and Paul Church  $7,729 

Parkerville Children and Youth Care Incorporated  $4,500,000 

Pat Thomas House Inc  $23,283 

Patricia Giles Centre Inc.  $75,100 

Peel Community Development Group Inc.  $2,705 

Pemberton Mill Hall Restoration Committee Incorporated  $37,814 

People Who Care (Inc.)  $17,318 

Perth Blues Club (W.A.) Incorporated  $7,800 

Perth Bone and Tissue Bank Incorporated  $250,000 

Perth Concert Band Incorporated  $7,400 

Perth Glendi Association of WA Inc  $20,000 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Perth Hebrew Congregation Inc  $43,350 

Perth Highland Pipe Band of W.A. (Inc.)  $5,194 

Perth Inner City Youth Service Inc  $20,000 

Perth Inner City Youth Service Inc  $38,118 

Perth Male Voice Choir Association (Inc)  $1,460 

Perth Metro Pipe Band Inc.  $13,572 

Perth Studio Potters (Inc)  $14,200 

Perth Tango Club Inc.  $4,454 

Phoenix Support and Advocacy Service Inc.  $35,557 

Plantagenet Historical Society Incorporated  $6,000 

Plantagenet Players  $196,147 

Playgroup WA (Inc)  $690,000 

Polish Club General W.Sikorski Western Australia  $99,900 

Pollinators Inc  $50,000 

Probus Club of Booragoon Incorporated  $1,980 

Probus Club of Subiaco Inc.  $2,058 

Propel Youth Arts WA Incorporated  $35,000 

Prostate Cancer Foundation of Australia Limited - WA Division  $4,937 

Puranyangu-Rangka Kerrem (Aboriginal Radio) Aboriginal Corporation  $10,000 

Quairading Tourist and Tidy Town Committee  $6,340 

Quinninup Community Association Incorporated  $4,500 

Ravensthorpe Community Centre Inc  $102,430 

Real Life Community Services Inc.  $5,448 

Red Dirt Blue Sky Inc.  $60,000 

Red Robin Playgroup (INC)  $5,548 

Regional Alliance West Incorporated  $100,000 

Regional Development Australia Great Southern Western Australia Incorporated  $10,000 

Regional Early Education and Development Inc.  $588,905 

Relationships Australia (Western Australia) Incorporated  $380,000 

Retina Australia (WA) Inc  $2,315 

Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $849,498 

Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $28,750 

Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $298,850 

Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - Esperance Sub Branch  $11,116 

Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - Toodyay Sub Branch  $4,286 
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Riding for the Disabled Association of Western Australia Capricorn Group Incorporated  $17,850 

Riding for the Disabled Association of Western Australia Peel Group Incorporated  $43,065 

River Conservation Society Incorporated  $11,000 

Riverside West Salter Point Social Club  $4,972 

Riverview Community Services Inc.  $90,000 

Rockingham City Pipe Band Incorporated  $9,362 

Rockingham Photography (Inc.)  $3,932 

Rocky Bay Incorporated  $4,800,000 

Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - St Joseph’s Parish Northam  $10,000 

Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - The Shopfront  $15,000 

Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton - Centacare Family Services  $55,000 

Rossmoyne Kindergarten Inc  $209,000 

Rossmoyne Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets  $4,868 

Rotary Club of Applecross Inc.  $12,000 

Rotary Club of Ballajura - Malaga Inc.  $7,350 

Rotary Club of Bunbury, Western Australia, (Inc)  $4,376 

Rotary Club of Mandurah Districts Western Australia Incorporated  $5,000 

Rotary Club of North Perth (Inc)  $20,000 

Rotary Club of Willetton (Inc)  $8,400 

Royal Agricultural Society of Western Australia  $1,500,000 

Royal Agricultural Society of Western Australia  $450,000 

Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Western Australia (Incorporated)  $922,780 

Royal Western Australian Historical Society Incorporated  $22,466 

Roy’s Retreat Inc.  $18,985 

RTRFM 92.1 LTD  $16,303 

Ruah Community Services  $131,344 

Ruah Community Services  $240,149 

Salvation Army (WA) Property Trust  $36,410 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Saraswati Mahavidyalaya Institute Incorporated  $20,000 

Scarboro Surf Life Saving Club  $300,000 

Scarborough Autumn Club Inc.  $7,025 

Scarborough Beach Association (Inc)  $5,000 

Scarborough Playgroup  $13,000 

Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $140,290 

Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $218,475 

Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $50,000 

Screenwest (Australia) Limited  $7,558,369 

Sculpture By The Sea Incorporated  $233,088 

Seacrest Village Social Club  $3,000 

Second Harvest Australia Inc  $100,000 

Seniors’ Recreation Council of WA (Inc)  $35,000 

Servants Of United Love Incorporated  $49,129 

Settlers Lakeside Village Ravenswood Residents’ Association Incorporated  $6,000 

Share & Care Community Services Group Incorporated  $272,800 

Share & Care Community Services Group Incorporated  $30,670 

Share the Dignity Limited  $40,910 

Shark Bay Youth Group Association Incorporated  $2,000 

Sheila Foundation Limited  $29,919 

Shelter WA Inc  $252,532 

Shelter WA Inc  $750,000 

Shenton Park Playgroup (Inc)  $4,399 

Shinju Matsuri Inc.  $40,000 

Shinju Matsuri Inc.  $40,000 

Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $405,268 

Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $50,000 

Shire of Boddington  $5,000 
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Shire of Boddington  $40,000 

Shire of Boyup Brook  $20,000 

Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $52,471 

Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $40,645 

Shire of Broome  $47,185 

Shire of Capel  $6,151 

Shire of Capel  $28,409 

Shire of Chittering  $9,000 

Shire of Coolgardie  $271,382 

Shire of Cunderdin  $20,946 

Shire of Dalwallinu  $32,168 

Shire of Dandaragan  $22,410 

Shire of Dandaragan  $10,015 

Shire of Denmark  $163,400 

Shire of Donnybrook-Balingup  $11,720 

Shire of Donnybrook-Balingup  $9,000 

Shire of East Pilbara  $19,158 

Shire of East Pilbara  $25,000 

Shire of East Pilbara  $114,526 

Shire of Gingin  $30,000 

Shire of Gingin  $15,000 

Shire of Gingin  $17,400 

Shire of Gingin  $15,000 

Shire of Harvey  $750,000 

Shire of Katanning  $10,000 

Shire of Katanning  $10,000 

Shire of Katanning  $50,000 

Shire of Koorda  $70,000 

Shire of Lake Grace  $87,715 

Shire of Leonora  $36,000 

Shire of Leonora  $679,485 

Shire of Manjimup  $227,000 

Shire of Merredin  $9,000 

Shire of Merredin  $186,186 

Shire of Merredin - Cummins Theatre  $73,840 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Shire of Mount Magnet  $20,000 

Shire of Mt Marshall  $5,062 

Shire of Mukinbudin  $417,852 

Shire of Mundaring  $8,159 

Shire of Murray  $20,000 

Shire of Murray  $251,000 

Shire of Narembeen  $41,998 

Shire of Northam  $776,000 

Shire of Northampton  $90,000 

Shire of Northampton  $33,400 

Shire of Peppermint Grove  $9,686 

Shire of Perenjori  $17,609 

Shire of Perenjori  $25,000 

Shire of Quairading  $87,000 

Shire of Quairading  $2,850 

Shire of Sandstone  $7,900 

Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $8,167 

Shire of Tammin  $22,000 

Shire of Toodyay  $197,000 

Shire of Upper Gascoyne  $25,000 

Shire of Upper Gascoyne  $20,000 

Shire of Wagin  $5,522 

Shire of Waroona  $234,565 

Shire of Waroona  $24,230 

Shire of Westonia  $30,000 

Shire of Woodanilling  $42,400 

Shire of Yalgoo  $20,000 

Shire of Yalgoo  $18,250 

Shire of York  $366,071 

Shire of York  $16,925 

So Change Inc.  $36,542 

So Change Inc.  $20,000 

Solace Grief Support Group WA Inc  $8,906 

Song Room Limited  $311,894 

Sonrise Christian Life Centre Incorporated  $33,090 
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South East Regional Centre for Urban Landcare (Inc)  $24,858 

South Lake Ottey Family & Neighbourhood Centre Incorporated  $59,500 

South West Counselling Inc.  $27,794 

South West Opera Company (Inc)  $5,750 

South West Refuge Inc  $29,500 

South West Refuge Inc  $492,000 

South West Women’s Health and Information Centre Incorporated  $7,621 

Southcare (Incorporated)  $80,000 

Southern Agcare Inc.  $25,000 

Southern Districts Bands Inc  $15,000 

Southern Edge Arts Incorporated  $27,744 

Southside Harmony Men Barbershop Chorus (Inc)  $8,500 

South-West Aboriginal Medical Service Aboriginal Corporation  $5,344 

Species Orchid Society of WA Incorporated  $5,709 

Spiers Centre Inc  $560,000 

Spinal Cord Injuries Australia  $750,000 

Splitperth Group Inc.  $10,000 

St Barbara’s Festival Incorporated  $15,866 

St Ives Centro Residents’ Association Inc.  $8,000 

St John Ambulance Western Australia Ltd.  $1,375,586 

St Patrick’s Community Support Centre Limited  $982,966 

St Patrick’s Day WA Inc  $15,000 

St Vincent De Paul Society (WA) Incorporated  $1,437,500 

St Vincent De Paul Society (WA) Incorporated - Passages Northbridge  $155,000 

Starick Services Inc  $50,000 

Stellar Living Ltd  $43,474 

Stellar Living Ltd  $54,510 

Stirling Carols by Candlelight Inc.  $10,540 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Street Law Centre WA Incorporated  $5,000 

Subiaco Play Centre (Inc)  $10,000 

Superfins WA Incorporated  $15,000 

Sustain: The Australian Food Network Ltd  $10,000 

Sustain: The Australian Food Network Ltd  $10,000 

Swan River Pioneers 1829-1838 Inc.  $4,471 

Swan Valley Community Centre Inc  $3,050 

Swan Valley Happenings Inc  $3,547 

Swan View Primary School River Rangers  $14,476 

Tammin Economy Shop Cooinda Association T.E.S.C.A. (Inc)  $5,700 

Te Haupai Maori and Pacific Island Trust Association Inc.  $20,000 

Tenancy WA Incorporated  $9,000 

Teranca Mews Residents Association  $4,000 

Theatre Kimberley Incorporated  $11,117 

Tom Price Senior High School Emergency Services Cadets  $15,000 

Toodyay Community Resource Centre Inc  $11,445 

Toodyay Event Planning Inc.  $15,000 

Toodyay Fibre Festival Inc.  $5,000 

Town of Bassendean  $25,000 

Town of Bassendean  $200,000 

Town of Cambridge  $30,142 

Town of Claremont  $10,000 

Town of East Fremantle  $19,852 

Town of Mosman Park  $14,768 

Town of Mosman Park  $7,000 

Town of Port Hedland  $20,000 

Town of Victoria Park  $24,860 

Toy Libraries Australia Inc.  $4,513 
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Trails WA Inc.  $17,500 

Training Ship Canning Unit Committee  $13,648 

Trainingship Cockburn Parents Committee Inc.  $11,710 

True Blue Dreaming Inc.  $9,500 

Undalup Association Inc.  $14,454 

Undalup Association Inc.  $18,507 

Uni Camp For Kids Incorporated  $92,952 

Unit Committee T.S. Pilbara Incorporated  $13,445 

Unit Committee TS Perth Inc.  $10,785 

United Eritrean Association of WA Inc  $2,020 

United Nations Association of Australia (W.A. Division) Inc  $6,950 

United Way West Australia Inc.  $31,088 

Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - South Perth Uniting Church Childcare Centre  $65,000 

Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Aid  $135,000 

Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Outreach Mandurah  $20,000 

University of Western Australia - Centre for Social Impact  $77,040 

UWA - Perth International Arts Festival  $7,558,369 

Variety WA Incorporated  $98,996 

Variety WA Incorporated  $110,000 

Veteran Car Club of W.A.  $18,000 

Vic Park Collective Inc  $15,000 

Victoria Park Centre for the Arts Inc  $5,000 

Vietnamese Community in Australia / Western Australia Chapter Incorporated  $15,000 

Volunteer Centre of Western Australia (Inc.)  $244,000 

Volunteer South West Incorporated  $6,297 

W.A. Council on Addictions  $255,980 

W.A. Disabled Sports Association  $137,952 

W.A. MCL Inc  $11,703 

W.A. Youth Jazz Orchestra Association (Inc.)  $9,374 

WA Bush Poets and Yarnspinners Association Inc.  $3,000 

WA Circus School Incorporated  $23,097 

WA French Festival Inc  $15,000 

WADJAK Northside Aboriginal Community Group Inc  $123,376 

Walalakoo Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC  $16,390 

Walpole Community Resource Centre (Inc.)  $16,939 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Walpole Community Resource Centre (Inc.)  $6,910 

Wanneroo Senior Citizens’s Club Inc  $13,618 

Waratah Christian Community Inc  $9,510 

Waratah Support Centre (South West Region) Inc  $16,000 

Waringarri Arts Aboriginal Corporation  $20,143 

Warmun Art Aboriginal Corporation  $74,688 

Warnbro Community Church Incorporated  $750,000 

Waroona Agricultural Society Incorporated  $5,081 

Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc.  $25,750 

Waroona Senior Citizens Welfare Committee  $48,998 

Waterbird Conservation Group Incorporated  $1,758 

Wembley Playgroup Inc.  $2,000 

Wembley Theatre Company Incorporated  $3,922 

West Australian Ballet Company  $186,304 

West Australian Little Athletics Inc  $6,818 

West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $270,530 

West Morley Primary School River Rangers  $11,909 

West Swan Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade  $8,085 

WestAus Crisis and Welfare Services Inc  $55,000 

Westcare Incorporated  $345,650 

Westcycle Incorporated  $6,815 

Western Australia Kannada Sangha Inc  $4,605 

Western Australia Samoa Association Inc  $15,490 

Western Australian Adult Literacy Council Incorporated  $11,250 

Western Australian AIDS Council (Inc.)  $7,280 

Western Australian Association for Mental Health (Inc)  $50,000 

Western Australian Association of the Deaf Incorporated  $15,000 

Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $838,228 

Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $340,568 

Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $203,510 

Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $1,750,000 

Western Australian Council of State School Organisations  $39,370 

Western Australian Deaf Society (Inc)  $152,170 

Western Australian Family Violence Prevention Legal Service Aboriginal Corporation  $32,200 

Western Australian Horse Council Inc.  $5,507 



Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Western Australian Naturalists’ Club Inc  $15,000 

Western Australian Network of Alcohol and Other Drug Agencies Incorporated  $81,316 

Western Australian Opera Company Incorporated  $220,000 

Western Australian Sports Federation  $14,000 

Wheatbelt Community Legal Centre Inc  $27,844 

Whitelion Youth Agency Ltd  $15,000 

Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $30,000 

Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $20,000 

Whitford Senior Citizens Club (Inc)  $10,012 

Wickepin Community Resource Centre Inc.  $5,000 

Wijilawarrim Aboriginal Corporation  $14,935 

William Langford Community House Incorporated  $66,700 

Williams Gateway Expo (Inc)  $15,000 

Wilson Park Japanese Playgroup  $10,000 

Wirrabirra Child Care Centre Inc  $93,384 

Women’s Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc.  $20,666 

Women’s Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc.  $11,000 

Women’s Law Centre of Western Australia Inc.  $57,448 

Wongan-Ballidu and District Menshed Inc  $19,202 

Woodturners Association of Western Australia (Inc)  $12,442 

Workpower Incorporated  $8,250 

Yaandina Community Services Limited  $326,500 

Yarra Yarra Catchment Management Group Incorporated  $7,691 

Yawoorroong Miriuwung Gajerrong Yirrgeb Noong Dawang Aboriginal Corporation  $14,720 

Yirra Yaakin Aboriginal Corporation  $12,000 

York Arts and Events Incorporated  $1,910 

Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $49,750 

Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $117,630 

Grantee Customer Granted Amount

Youth Futures WA (Inc).  $24,550 

Youth Involvement Council Incorporated  $102,639 

Yura Yungi Medical Service Aboriginal Corporation  $7,000 

zero2hero Inc.  $8,984 

Zonta House Women’s Refuge Inc.  $48,300 

Total Granted $103,874,153

Grants approved to the WA community
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